

6/26/2014

Page 1

STATE OF MICHIGAN

DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING

Page 1 - 61

Taken at 1301 Third Street

Detroit, Michigan

Commencing at 3:00 p.m.

Thursday, June 26, 2014

Before Rhonda M. Foster, CSR 3612

1 COMMISSIONERS:

2 JESSICA TAYLOR, Chairperson

3 DONNELL R. WHITE, Vice Chairperson

4 RICHARD SHELBY, Commissioner, District 1

5 WENDELL L. BYRD, Commissioner, District 2

6 REGINALD CRAWFORD, District 3

7 WILLIE E. BELL, Commissioner, District 4

8 WILLIE E. BURTON, Commissioner, District 5

9 LISA CARTER, Commissioner, District 6

10 RICARDO R. MOORE, Commissioner, District 7

11 GEORGE ANTHONY, Executive Secretary

12

13

14 DETROIT POLICE DEPARTMENT

15 COMMAND STAFF:

16 A.C. JAMES WHITE

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1 Detroit, Michigan
2 Thursday, June 26, 2014
3 About 3:03 p.m.

4

5 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Good afternoon, and
6 welcome to the Board of Police Commissioners meeting.
7 I am Commissioner Jessica Taylor, Chairperson. And our
8 Board Secretary is Mr. George Anthony.

9 And Mr. Secretary, will you call the roll,
10 please.

11 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Madam Chair.
12 Commissioner Donnell R. White?

13 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Present.

14 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Richard
15 Shelby?

16 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Present.

17 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner
18 Wendell L. Byrd?

19 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Present.

20 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Reginald
21 Crawford?

22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Present.

23 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie E.
24 Bell?

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Present.

1 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Willie E.

2 Burton?

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Present.

4 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Lisa Carter?

5 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Present.

6 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner Ricardo

7 Moore?

8 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Present.

9 SECRETARY ANTHONY: You have a full Board,
10 ma'am.

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you.

12 From the Chief's Office is A.C. James White.

13 A.C. WHITE: Good afternoon.

14 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: And Mr. Secretary, will
15 you introduce the rest of the staff?

16 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Thank you, Madam Chair.

17 Our staff includes Ms. Aliyah Sabree, who is
18 our Attorney to the Board seated in front. Next to her
19 is Ms. Pamela Davis-Drake, our Chief Investigator.
20 Mr. Robert Brown, our Office Manager, is seated to the
21 right of me. Sergeant Alan Quinn is our recorder. And
22 Ms. Rhonda Foster is taking the transcript. She is
23 from Hanson Court Reporting Service.

24 That completes the introduction, ma'am.

25 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you.

1 At this time, I am going to call for a motion
2 to approve the agenda for Thursday, June 26th.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: So moved, Madam Chair.

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved. Is
5 there a second?

6 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Second.

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved and
8 supported.

9 Any discussion?

10 All in favor?

11 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All opposed?

13 The agenda stands approved.

14 I call for a motion to approve the minutes
15 for Thursday, June 12, 2014.

16 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So moved.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second.

18 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved and
19 seconded.

20 Any discussion?

21 All in favor?

22 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

23 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Opposed?

24 Agenda stands approved.

25 Okay. The Officers' Report.

1 I am going to have the Secretary Report
2 first.

3 SECRETARY ANTHONY: The Secretary's Report is
4 citizen complaints received May 2014.

5 The monthly count of complaints for May was
6 131, compared to May of 2013, at 130; represents a
7 1 percent increase.

8 The year-to-date figure through May 2014 is
9 586. Year-to-date for 2013, as a comparison, is 475;
10 this represents a 23 percent increase.

11 At the end of May 2014, the Office of the
12 Chief Investigator had open investigations, 276; cases
13 filed, 586; cases closed, 584.

14 Of the 131 cases filed, 37 percent involved
15 unknown officers. The alleged known units involved:
16 Leading in complaints filed in May of 2014, were the
17 8th precinct, at 8 percent; the 9th precinct, at
18 8 percent; and Communications at 7 percent.

19 The 131 cases filed in May of 2014 involved
20 269 allegations, where the leading areas of concern
21 were procedure, at 33 percent; demeanor at 26 percent;
22 service at 10 percent; and property at 7 percent.

23 Closed complaints: There were 140 citizen
24 complaints that were closed in May of 2014. And those
25 complaints involved 287 allegations where the findings

1 were not sustained at 49 percent; unfounded at
2 16 percent; exonerated at 11 percent; and sustained at
3 11 percent.

4 The leading areas of concern in the 140
5 closed cases in May were procedure at 36 percent;
6 demeanor at 24 percent; force at 13 percent; and
7 service at 8 percent.

8 And that completes the Secretary's Report.
9 And there is a map, and on the map there is a chart on
10 the other side showing those closed cases.

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All right. Thank you,
12 Mr. Secretary.

13 At this time, we will have the Chief
14 Investigator from the OCI's Office, the monthly report.

15 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Thank you, Madam
16 Chair. Pamela Davis-Drake, Chief Investigator, for the
17 record.

18 Currently, as of today, our statistics, we
19 are at 283 cases. Seventeen cases have been submitted
20 for closing, and we have no cases that have been
21 submitted over 90 days.

22 As expected, our numbers are increasing.

23 We are currently gearing up for vacation.
24 And we are scheduling out so that we have appropriate
25 coverage.

1 We also have one expectant mom who is going
2 to be out in September on maternity leave, so we are
3 planning accordingly.

4 And finally, I am working on some research
5 that was actually posed, brought to my attention by
6 Commissioner Taylor with regard to possible mediation
7 for some of the cases. I will be including, of course,
8 the Department on that at some point, and also
9 providing a report to the Board, as soon as the
10 research is concluded and I have a viable proposal to
11 give to you.

12 And that concludes my report. Are there any
13 questions?

14 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: How is it looking with
15 the -- I know you have got to do the report, but is it
16 looking pretty good?

17 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: It is looking very
18 good. Like I said, the last thing that we have to do
19 obviously is include the Department to make sure that
20 it is viable for them, and to also make sure that they
21 are included in this process. The research right now
22 is being conducted. I am putting some things on paper.
23 But it does look very viable.

24 There are at least three other states,
25 Oregon, California, and Washington, D.C., that have

1 mediation. And I know that at one time, the Board was
2 working on a mediation proposal. I think that was a
3 couple of years ago. The same people that were
4 involved through the Wayne County Mediation Center are
5 involved now, and they're assisting with the additional
6 research.

7 So it is looking good, to answer your
8 question.

9 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All right. Thank you.
10 Any other questions?

11 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Through the Chair, I
12 congratulate your team for your efforts in closing
13 cases and keeping them in a timely fashion.
14 Reflecting, I can remember days when it was nothing to
15 have 400 or 500 cases that had not been addressed, so I
16 thank your team for your efforts.

17 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Thank you, sir.
18 Appreciate that.

19 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Are there any other
20 questions for the Chief?

21 A.C. WHITE: I would also like to comment on
22 or piggyback the comments made. Since the Chief
23 Investigator has been in place, we have seen
24 considerable improvement across the board; most
25 importantly, the working relationship that we have with

1 OCI, not taking anything away from anyone she replaced
2 over there, but just a consummate professional, very
3 hardworking, and keeps the doors of communication open,
4 which we find to be the most important thing you can do
5 in these processes.

6 So my hat is off to you, and keep up the good
7 work.

8 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Thank you, sir.

9 And that goes both ways, absolutely. And you
10 all have been wonderful. And you certainly have been
11 an asset --

12 A.C. WHITE: Thank you.

13 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: -- to OCI. Thank
14 you.

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you.

16 Let's move to the Chief' presentation, report
17 for Civil Rights.

18 MS. SIMS: Good afternoon, Madam Chair,
19 Commissioners.

20 COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.

21 MS. SIMS: My name is DeShaune Sims. I am
22 the Commander assigned to the Civil Rights Division.
23 We are responsible for ensuring compliance with the
24 Consent Judgments that were -- we were sued by the
25 Federal Government.

1 My staff I have is Lieutenant James Domine,
2 and I have Audit Division Audit Manager, Angie Harvey.

3 In 2000, the Department of Justice launched
4 an investigation of the Detroit Police Department based
5 on complaints they received. And they looked to see
6 whether or not there was a pattern of practice of
7 behavior of violating individual civil rights.

8 So in 2003, July 18th, we signed two
9 agreements. One was Conditions of Confinement; the
10 second was Use of Force, Arrest and Witness Detention.

11 And that was the first time in the history of
12 a law enforcement agency where a Department received a
13 Conditions of Confinement Consent Judgment from the
14 Federal Government. Usually those judgments were given
15 to jails or prisons. And so Detroit was one of the
16 first precincts to receive a Conditions of Confinement
17 Consent Judgment.

18 The Conditions of Confinement judgment was
19 initially a two-year decree. You know, looking at the
20 language that was written, we didn't think there would
21 be an issue or problem for us to come into compliance.
22 It took us a little bit longer. We had an extension
23 filed going into 2013. We did file three different
24 extensions. The final one was ended July 18th of 2013.
25 And I just want you guys to know that we did come into

1 full compliance with those requirements, effective
2 June 30th, 2013, before that Consent Judgment ended.

3 We were finally able to have that judgment
4 released and we no longer have that judgment anymore,
5 but we were in compliance with all 65 requirements
6 prior to that judgment being terminated.

7 The Use of Force Decree was a five-year
8 requirement. We did not, again, reach sustainability
9 within those five years. We did file two separate
10 extension requests. The last extension is set to
11 expire July 18, 2014. We are working with the judge
12 now to determine the transition process and what we are
13 going to do going forward, looking at whether or not we
14 are going to file for an extension or just file a
15 Transition Agreement.

16 There was a meeting held today. We have a
17 new judge in place, Federal Judge in place. Judge
18 Julian Cook had been on this case for 10 -- since 2003,
19 so 11 years now almost. He retired. We were assigned
20 Judge Avern Cohn, and so there was a meeting with the
21 Federal Judge, the Department of Justice, the
22 U.S. Attorneys' Office, and our attorney that's
23 assigned to our case today to discuss what we are going
24 to do going forward. So we don't know what it will
25 look like in the future, but we are hoping that

1 something that's more amenable or agreeable to us will
2 take place.

3 And just for your information, we have 110
4 paragraphs that we are working with on the Use of Force
5 and Arrest and Witness Detention. We have been in
6 compliance with 89 of those paragraphs for two years or
7 longer. There are nine paragraphs that we have never
8 had. So when you look at 110 paragraphs, and to have
9 89 be in place for two years or longer, I think that's
10 a tremendous accomplishment for the Department. We
11 didn't think for a long time we would be able to get
12 there, but we are getting there.

13 Some of the provisions of the Conditions of
14 Confinement Judgment was to develop and implement a
15 comprehensive fire detection program. We didn't have
16 anything in place to identify how we would evacuate
17 detainees if there was a fire or some type of event
18 that occurred within a holding facility. And we didn't
19 always practice evacuating the building in case
20 something happened. So we had to put something in
21 place to make sure that those things were done
22 properly.

23 A medical and mental health screening
24 program, and making sure that we had appropriate
25 clothing for suicidal prisoners. We had to remove all

1 hazardous equipment from the holding cells. Some of
2 the holding cells had what they call devices that would
3 allow prisoners to hang themselves from. So we had to
4 make sure those things were removed.

5 We had to make sure that we did adequate
6 checks. We started doing 30-minute checks and
7 documenting those checks to make sure that everybody
8 was okay that we were detaining.

9 And then we had to put a process in place for
10 receiving and reviewing complaints that were lodged.
11 And usually those complaints were turned over to the
12 Office of the Chief Investigator for investigation.

13 In addition, the most important thing was
14 revising our policies. We had some policies in place.
15 We were not always following those policies. Those
16 policies were not always updated.

17 I know when I came on the job in 1996, we had
18 policies from 1987 that we were, you know, following
19 and adhering to. So we weren't keeping up with best
20 practices. And so this judgment forced us to do
21 research and continuing to do research of other
22 agencies to find out what's currently happening in
23 those places and looking to see if we could implement
24 those practices here in the Department.

25 We also didn't have a device -- a weapon to

1 utilize between our gun and chemical spray. So we
2 ended up introducing PR-24 in our force continuum.

3 When a person was detained, sometimes we kept
4 them longer than they should have been detained. I
5 know for a long time in Homicide it was customary if
6 you witnessed a homicide, they would just take you down
7 to Headquarters and keep you on the 8th or 9th floor
8 until you talked. We were violating civil rights.

9 And so now we have to make sure that we have
10 you presented before a magistrate within 48 hours. And
11 if we are not able to, we have to document that and the
12 reasons for the exception. And we find generally those
13 exceptions come from the Prosecutor's Office, and that
14 we have to go out and get additional information. But
15 we don't keep people beyond 72 hours.

16 Again, the Consent Judgment required us to
17 make sure we had accountability and oversight, which is
18 something that we didn't always do consistently. So
19 not only consistent, we have processes in place to make
20 sure investigations are conducted, investigations are
21 reviewed and approved through their chain of command up
22 to the Captain. And if there is any discrepancies of
23 those things, go back for clarification and/or
24 corrections.

25 We have mandatory in-service training

1 annually. And we also have bi-annual training on our
2 weapons.

3 The Monitor's role in terms of the Consent
4 Judgment provided oversight and technical assistance to
5 make sure that we are complying with the mandates of
6 the consent judgement.

7 The impact it has had on the Department, it
8 has made us a better Department. You know, we have
9 agencies come to us now asking, what do we do in order
10 to get into compliance? Just yesterday I received an
11 e-mail from Maricopa County in Arizona. They are going
12 to send some of their representatives here in the next
13 couple of weeks to sit down and talk with us to see
14 what we have done right to help them move along in
15 their process. That's important because for a long
16 time we didn't have people coming to us. You know,
17 back in the '70s, maybe, we were a premiere Department,
18 but we kind of lost our way, and nobody was really
19 coming to us to say, what are you guys doing right? We
20 want to follow your example. But now we have that in
21 place, and people want to come to us and say, we want
22 to be like you. So that makes me feel good. I don't
23 know about A.C. --

24 A.C. WHITE: No, I feel good about it.

25 MS. SIMS: -- but it makes me feel good to

1 know that other agencies want to come and see what we
2 are doing.

3 And it is important that the City support us,
4 and we have received tremendous support from the City
5 and from the Board in making sure that we are, you
6 know, a constitutionally-based Police Department and
7 doing the things that we have to do to ensure the
8 rights of the citizens.

9 We have a Compliance Team. The Compliance
10 Team is a liaison between the Department and our
11 monitoring team. They collect the information that is
12 utilized by the Monitors to determine whether or not we
13 are in compliance.

14 They also review that information, and if we
15 find areas where we are not in compliance, we relate
16 that back to those commands and have them submit a
17 Corrective Action Plan on what they are going to do to
18 ensure that they come into compliance and remain in
19 compliance.

20 Our Audit Team is comprised of all civilians.
21 We have an Audit Team Manager and we have six civilian
22 auditors. When we had both Consent Judgments, we were
23 conducting over 264 audits every year. We are now
24 conducting around 195 audits, because each audit
25 paragraph has subparagraphs.

1 And we audit because we want to make sure
2 that we are doing what we are supposed to do. If we
3 find through our audits that something is continuing to
4 occur, more often than it should, it may be that the
5 policy is not clear. So we will make recommendations
6 for policies to be updated or amended.

7 And then what we audit is use of force, and
8 prisoner injuries, arrests and custodial detention,
9 employee performance, we look at that with our risk
10 management system, we look at citizen complaints, stops
11 and frisks, vehicle pursuits.

12 And as of the Monitor's last report, that was
13 for the period ending December 30th, we are waiting on
14 the next report to come out now that covers January to
15 March of this year, we were at 86 percent. And again,
16 we have been in compliance with 89 paragraphs for two
17 years or longer, so we are at 89 percent. The highest
18 level of compliance for the Use of Force Consent
19 Judgment was at 89 percent, which occurred in the
20 15th quarter.

21 Are there any questions?

22 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Commissioners, do you
23 have any questions?

24 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Madam Chair, I do have a
25 question.

1 Commander, you stated that we needed an
2 intermediate weapon between the pepper spray and the
3 handgun?

4 MS. SIMS: Yes.

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Pepper spray isn't an
6 intermediate weapon itself?

7 MS. SIMS: Well, we didn't have anything
8 else. It is a less lethal weapon than a handgun, yes.
9 But we didn't have anything between those two. Those
10 were the only two options. And more often than not, at
11 that time, officers were choosing to utilize their
12 weapon. So we needed something else in place that they
13 could utilize.

14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Got you. Thank you.

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Any more questions?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I just want
17 to say, Commander Sims, that we have come a long way,
18 and this is really a drastic improvement in reference
19 to handling, you know, people that we encounter, and
20 innocent until proven guilty, and more humane. And I
21 just want to commend the Department and the Chief and
22 Assistant Chief in reference to moving this along.

23 Is there a timeline that we might see the
24 light at the end of the tunnel as far as being under
25 this type of scrutiny Consent Decree?

1 MS. SIMS: Well, we are looking at maybe
2 another 12 to 18 months, but we are not sure. Again,
3 we have to prepare a Transition Agreement that the
4 Judge is going to look at because the Judgment does
5 expire next month. So once we submit that Transition
6 Agreement, we will know better what we are looking at,
7 but we are looking at another 12 to 18 months, and we
8 are hoping for 12.

9 COMMISSIONER BELL: One more question,
10 perhaps to both in terms of supervision, the sergeant
11 and lieutenant, especially the sergeant, are they able
12 to respond to the scene more so than in the past? I
13 know as a working sergeant, lieutenant, we was bogged
14 down with paper a lot of times with deadlines and, you
15 know, has that cleared up a little bit more to give you
16 flexibility to really respond? Because I think once
17 you arrive on the scene, you can be interaction,
18 supervision. Especially when I went back in the
19 precinct, a young Department, we did not have that many
20 senior officers. You know what I am speaking about?

21 A.C. WHITE: By policy, when we use force,
22 there must be a supervisor that responds, every time
23 force is used. If a supervisor does not respond, that
24 is a violation and is dealt with with corrective
25 action. So the answer, short answer to your question

1 is, yes, supervisors are able to respond, but we also
2 mandate that a supervisor respond, which I think when
3 you were on, like when I first came on, that wasn't
4 mandated.

5 The other piece of that is we have a span of
6 control now where in your time, you got as many police
7 officers as they could fit on the sheet that you --
8 were assigned to you. Now we strictly regulate that
9 there are ten police officers to every one sergeant.
10 And that sergeant has to know, has to rate, has to
11 evaluate that police officer.

12 So in times past, I am sure you remember, you
13 get your service rating, you never met the sergeant
14 before. They call you in, they say, here, sign this.
15 Right?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Right.

17 A.C. WHITE: Well, now the sergeant knows
18 you. He or she is out with you. They are interacting
19 with you on a daily basis. And so as a result of that,
20 we are seeing a lot less of the complaints we used to
21 see because the sergeants can track behavior. With the
22 management awareness system, say you have got an
23 officer who routinely gets citizen complaints, and you
24 can -- because you know him, you know, why does this
25 guy always get complaints when he is talking to women?

1 Or why does he always get complaints when he is talking
2 to black males versus white males? You are able to
3 aggregate the data, look at it, and see what's going on
4 with the officer. We have what's called monitoring, so
5 if we have a problem with an officer, with a particular
6 demographic, we can do some things, we can monitor
7 them, we can send them to conflict resolution, we can
8 send them to -- what's that course?

9 MS. SIMS: Verbal judo and customer service
10 training.

11 A.C. WHITE: -- verbal judo, customer
12 service, so we are able to do a lot of different things
13 now that we weren't able to do even ten years ago.

14 MS. SIMS: And the supervisors are
15 required -- if the person is identified for
16 intervention, the supervisors are required to respond
17 to those runs and observe the interactions with the
18 officers and the citizens.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: You hit the nail right on
20 the head. That's really good news. Thank you.

21 MS. SIMS: Thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I have a question
23 through the Chair.

24 Ten years, this has been very costly to the
25 Department, tens of millions of dollars. What --

1 annually, what is it costing us per year now? Or do
2 you have --

3 MS. SIMS: For this team, we are paying over
4 a million dollars. That is a reduction from what we
5 paid from the previous monitoring team. That
6 monitoring team was getting 2 point something million
7 dollars a year.

8 With the proposal going forward, if we are
9 able to have set aside those 89 paragraphs, and because
10 we no longer have Conditions of Confinement, we are
11 asking that the monitoring fees be lowered. So, again,
12 that's going through the courts and we are going to see
13 what comes out of that.

14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. I want
15 to commend the Department as to where we are today,
16 because I know where we were when, and I do know the
17 activism in the City is the cause of this, that brought
18 all this to light and exposed it, community, Coalition
19 Against Police Brutality, Ron Scott and many of us
20 officers were there too, brought about this change.
21 And it was activism and its impact that brought this
22 about. I agree it has been very costly, and it has
23 been a very long journey here, but I am so glad to see,
24 and I want to commend the Department on the movement
25 that we have that we are experiencing from ten years

1 ago.

2 MS. SIMS: And regardless of how we got here,
3 it has made us a better Department.

4 A.C. WHITE: It has. And I agree, you know,
5 the Coalition Against Police Brutality and other groups
6 that have identified problems, you know, it would be
7 easy to say, well, we weren't that bad. That would be
8 a lie. We were that bad. And we are most certainly a
9 better policing organization now than we have ever
10 been, certainly in my career. I am proud of the men
11 and women out there. We are doing things the right
12 way. Do we make mistakes? We certainly do. But we
13 have processes now in place where if we make a mistake,
14 we admit it, we show it, and we correct it.

15 So thank you.

16 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Are there any other
17 questions?

18 If not, ma'am, I guess thank you.

19 MS. SIMS: Thank you.

20 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Very thorough report.

21 Okay. We will move to the Standing Committee
22 Reports.

23 Under New Business I am going to ask
24 Commissioner Burton if he would read the resolve clause
25 into the record, the Resolution of Retired Commander

1 Brian Stair.

2 COMMISSIONER BURTON: That the Board of
3 Police Commissioners, speaking for the citizens of
4 Detroit and the Detroit Police Department, awards this
5 resolution in sincere appreciation and recognition of
6 Commander Brian Stair's 25 years of outstanding service
7 and commitment to the city of Detroit and its citizens.
8 His tireless efforts and faithful public service merit
9 our highest regards and best wishes for continued
10 success.

11 We salute and congratulate you, Commander
12 Brian R. Stair.

13 Where is he?

14 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He is not here.

15 COMMISSIONER BURTON: That's okay. That's
16 okay.

17 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: I don't think either one
18 of them are here.

19 Maybe we could move to the next Commissioner,
20 Moore, can you read the resolution of Kimberly R.
21 Bennett, Sergeant Kimberly R. Bennett.

22 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, Madam Chair.

23 That the Detroit Board of Police
24 Commissioners, speaking on behalf of the Detroit Police
25 Department and the citizens of the City of Detroit

1 recognize the lifelong commitment to Public Safety of
2 Sergeant Kimberly R. Bennett. Her pride and dedication
3 have been invaluable assets to the Department and merit
4 our highest regard.

5 We thank and congratulate you, Sergeant
6 Kimberly R. Bennett.

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: At this time, I am going
8 to move to adopt the Resolution of Commander Brian
9 Stair.

10 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So moved.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved and
13 seconded.

14 Any discussion?

15 All in favor?

16 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

17 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All opposed?

18 The Resolution of Commander Brian Stair will
19 be adopted and added to the Board's permanent archives.

20 At this time I am going to move to adopt the
21 Resolution of Sergeant Kimberly Bennett.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: So moved.

23 COMMISSIONER BYRD: Second.

24 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved and
25 supported.

1 Any discussion?

2 All in favor?

3 COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All opposed?

5 The Resolution of Sergeant Kimberly Bennett
6 is adopted and added to the Board's permanent archives.

7 Under Old Business, we are going to move to
8 Old Business.

9 About a month ago, we talked about today
10 being election day for this Board, beginning a new
11 Board of -- Chair for the Board and a Vice Chair for
12 the Board.

13 And according to Section 7-802 of the
14 Charter, the Board shall elect a Chairperson annually.
15 A member of the Board may not serve consecutive terms
16 as Chairman.

17 But at this time, before we move for the
18 nominations, I am going to -- just want to stop and
19 thank everybody for their support this last year.
20 Because as many of you know, we -- this year, this past
21 year has been a lot of first things, being the first
22 woman of the Chair, being first woman Chair of the
23 Board, being the first time there is an Emergency
24 Manager. There's the first time the Board operated
25 under Executive Order 11, the first time that we had

1 elected Commissioners added. So it was a very
2 interesting time.

3 But I just want to thank this Board, and the
4 Board staff, I would like to thank Chief Craig and the
5 Detroit Police Department, and my Vice Chair, Donnell
6 White, and the Board, I mean, the Chief Investigator,
7 the OCI staff members, and last but not least, my
8 mentor, Mr. Tom Adams, for offering prayer when we
9 needed someone to pray for us. So I would like to
10 thank you.

11 So I just want to say that I never would have
12 gotten through that. It was your encouragement and all
13 the support that really made that last year just
14 remarkable and an exciting year for me. I had fun.
15 But now it is time that we elect our next Chair. And
16 with that I am going to open for nominations.

17 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay. Ma'am, through
18 the Chair, I nominate Commissioner Bell for the
19 Chairperson.

20 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. Commissioner
21 Willie Bell for the Chairperson.

22 And I am going to nominate Commissioner
23 Donnell White.

24 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Second.

25 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Oh, I am sorry, I need

1 to get the second.

2 It has been moved and seconded.

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: For Donnell White?

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: For Donnell White,
5 second for Donnell White?

6 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Did I get a second for
8 Donnell White?

9 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

10 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Second.

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It's not a second for
12 the Chair and the Vice Chair.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: You don't need a
14 nomination for the second.

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: No, it's not a second
16 for the Chair.

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Just nomination.

18 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Just nomination. Okay.
19 So we have nominated Donnell White and Commissioner
20 Bell, Willie Bell.

21 At this time -- now this is the first time I
22 have done that, so just be patient with me, but I think
23 right now I am supposed to move to -- for a vote for
24 Commissioner -- we have never done this before, but for
25 Commissioner Bell.

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: So moved.

2 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yeah, move to elect
3 Commissioner Bell, Willie Bell, for Chair.

4 It has been moved. Is there a second?

5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Second. I second.

6 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: No, we need a vote. I
7 don't know. I am just telling you. I told you I don't
8 know how to do it. Anybody know how to do it?

9 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Madam Chair, maybe
10 we can move to the Secretary.

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Mr. Adams, can you --
12 Board Secretary? Mr. -- somebody that knows what they
13 are doing.

14 MR. ADAMS: If I may offer a recommendation?

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes. Yes, sir.

16 MR. ADAMS: All we need to do now that you
17 nominated, you just -- you ask three times, are there
18 any more nominations? Are there any more nominations?
19 Are there any more nominations? And then if there are
20 not, you move to close nominations for Chair. And
21 after you close the nominations for Chair, you take
22 each one of the individuals, and you ask for a vote.
23 First Commissioner, vote, yea, count that, the
24 Secretary counts that, second Commissioner votes,
25 Secretary will count that. Then announce the winner.

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. I may need your
2 help as we walk through it.

3 Okay. Are there any other nominations?

4 Are there any other nominations?

5 Are there any other nominations?

6 Seeing none, I am going to ask -- call for a
7 vote for Commissioner Willie Bell.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: First of all, nominations
9 closed.

10 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Oh, nominations are
11 closed. Okay.

12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Call for a vote.

13 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Now I am calling for a
14 vote. Is there a -- oh, okay. Yeah. Calling for a
15 vote. All in favor?

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: I think we need a hand
17 vote.

18 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: By a show of hands.

19 COMMISSIONER BELL: Police Commissioner by a
20 rollcall vote.

21 MR. ADAMS: All in favor of Commissioner
22 Bell.

23 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yeah, that's what I am
24 trying to say, but they are saying I am wrong.

25 All in favor of Commissioner Bell being the

1 Chair for the Board of Police Commissioners --

2 MR. ADAMS: By show of hands.

3 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: -- raise your hands.

4 One, two -- Secretary?

5 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Six votes for
6 Commissioner Bell.

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay.

8 All in favor of Commissioner White? Since
9 that carries the vote, we don't -- it is not necessary
10 to --

11 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I want to -- one of the
12 things, my e-mail wasn't working, but I wanted to see
13 if this, you know, I would like to see this postponed
14 until we have got a full Board for the voting process.

15 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You have a full Board.

16 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: No. He is speaking to
17 the other two appointed Commissioners, I believe. Is
18 that what you are talking about, Mr. Commissioner
19 Burton?

20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Yes.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, that has no
22 bearing on anything. This new Commission has been
23 an impact -- what we call impaneled since January the
24 1st of this year, nine Commissioners. We have no
25 control when other Commissioners are going to be

1 forthcoming. So his remarks are inappropriate, and the
2 vote has already been taken.

3 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. I think we just
4 move forward. We don't have to address that.

5 MR. SCOTT: The Charter specifies that you
6 have to have a full Board in place to vote. It species
7 that the Charter -- because that's -- the reason I know
8 is because I was consulted. I was asked to testify
9 about it.

10 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you, sir. Well,
11 the Board now, with that said, what -- so we should not
12 really --

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I don't
14 think we should entertain that. I think the election
15 itself speaks for itself. It is on the agenda. We
16 should move forward with the Vice Chair election.

17 If there is any other legal challenge, they
18 can make it at a later date and time. This Board was
19 not empowered to do anything since we had this election
20 January the 1st. That is not the case. We were sworn
21 in as elected commissioners in January of this year
22 so we need to move forward. No disre --

23 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Well, let me -- no, no,
24 no, no, no. Let me just say this. I don't know if
25 there is going to be anymore people appointed. We have

1 been working with this for a while. I mean, there is
2 two more people that the Mayor is going to appoint.

3 Now, if you are saying that we need to wait,
4 is that what you are saying the Charter says that we
5 need to wait until those people are put in place? We
6 have an Emergency Manager here. And they say he is
7 leaving at a certain time, and then it will go back to
8 the, you know, where the Board -- back to the Charter.
9 But we don't know that he is going to leave. So I
10 don't know if it is going to be feasible for us to stop
11 and wait until the people come on. I don't know. I
12 will just poll the rest of the Board. What --

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, point of
14 order. I don't think the Chair should be entertaining
15 remarks from the audience. We need to move forward
16 with the agenda item at this particular time.

17 Mr. Burton made his comment, for what it's
18 worth, but we need to move forward and take care of
19 business.

20 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: That's what we are
21 addressing is Commissioner Burton's comment.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: It is a comment. It is a
23 comment.

24 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: And what I am trying to
25 see is that if there is the Charter saying that, then

1 what do we do? Do we still move forward? I don't
2 think --

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, he made a
4 comment that --

5 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Commissioner White?

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: He made a comment that he
7 didn't get an e-mail. I don't know where that is
8 coming from, you know, but basically, we need to --

9 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Coming from the
10 Charter.

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Let's just work it out.
12 Let's just work it out.

13 Commissioner White?

14 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: No comment.

15 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Madam Chair, if I can
16 chime in just for a moment.

17 The Charter says, too, that the Commissioners
18 cannot succeed themselves, cannot serve consecutive
19 terms. So there has to be an election of a new Chair.

20 I understand the argument for the Board, but
21 this Board has done this before. This is not the first
22 time that the Board has had an election of a
23 Chairperson and Vice Chairperson when there was not,
24 quote, unquote, a full Board. When there were just
25 appointees, we may have had three or four

1 Commissioners, when there should have been five.

2 So I think based on past practice, it would
3 be my opinion that the Board should go forward since
4 the Chair cannot succeed themselves, cannot serve
5 consecutive terms.

6 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Anthony.

7 And with that, we will now move to -- help
8 me -- Vice Chair. Nominations for the Vice Chair?

9 MR. ADAMS: Announce the winner.

10 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. The winner of
11 the -- the new Chair of the Board of Police
12 Commissioners is Commissioner Willie Bell. That will
13 be effective July 1st.

14 (Applause).

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. Now nominations
16 for the Vice Chair?

17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I nominate
18 Commissioner Lisa Carter for Vice Chair.

19 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Are there any other
20 nominations?

21 Are there any other nominations?

22 Are there any other nominations?

23 If not, we will --

24 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Close the vote.

25 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: -- close the vote.

1 And -- well, there is only one, so I would say that
2 Commissioner Lisa Carter -- do we have to vote?

3 MR. ADAMS: Still need to vote for the
4 record.

5 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Still need to vote for
6 the record.

7 MR. ADAMS: Seeing she was the only one
8 nominated, she may not get the votes. Okay.

9 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Well, that's a point.
10 That's why I like you. Thank you.

11 By a show of hands, for Lisa -- Commissioner
12 Lisa Carter for Vice Chair.

13 A unanimous decision has been reached for
14 Lisa Carter, the new Vice Chair of the Board of Police
15 Commissioners.

16 MR. BROWN: She has to accept.

17 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: She has to accept.

18 COMMISSIONER CARTER: I accept. Thank you.

19 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Now that you have
20 accepted, you are the new Vice Chair of the Board of
21 Police Commissioners.

22 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Thank you.

23 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Commissioner Lisa Carter
24 and Chairman Bell.

25 (Applause).

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. Goodness. I am
2 glad that's over.

3 COMMISSIONER BELL: We got through it.

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Like we always do.

5 So now we will just continue to move forward.

6 Okay. Now I am going to move to

7 Announcements.

8 Wednesday, July 2nd, is our next Board
9 meeting. It will be at 3:00 here at the Detroit Public
10 Safety Headquarters, 1301 Third Avenue, here in the
11 Michigan Room.

12 Now we are going to have Oral Communications
13 from the audience. And as you come forward, will you
14 state your name for the record, and two minutes,
15 please.

16 MS. WALKER: I am Debra Walker, D-e-b-r-a,
17 from the Corktown community right across the freeway
18 from you. I am actually here with a question.

19 We are fortunate to have two police officers
20 that patrol Corktown. And they are looking to have one
21 of those work stations, like you see them at 7-Eleven
22 and a couple of places where they can go in and write
23 their reports without having to sit in the car or go
24 into the office. We do have a business that has
25 volunteered space, it is actually a locked office, and

1 it has volunteered a laptop, as well, so it is no
2 expense to the Police Department. They don't know the
3 process. And I handle all of the community safety
4 meetings for Corktown. So I said I would kind of
5 follow up. So I was asked to kind of come and see if
6 maybe you all could give us some direction in how we
7 might make that happen.

8 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. Commissioners,
9 anyone have any suggestions?

10 A.C. WHITE: Yes, through the Chair. Well,
11 is it for the Commissioners? Or would you like me to
12 respond?

13 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Oh, no. Go ahead.

14 A.C. WHITE: You need to contact Commander
15 Todd Bettison with Police Community Services, and he
16 will walk you through the process.

17 MS. WALKER: What's the last name?

18 A.C. WHITE: Bettison, B-e-t-t-i-s-o-n.
19 Anybody have a number for him?

20 MS. PANNEL: I have got it.

21 A.C. WHITE: You have it.

22 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Ms. Pannel, get it from
23 her.

24 MS. WALKER: I will just get it from her.

25 Thank you very much.

1 A.C. WHITE: You are welcome.

2 MS. WELLS: Good evening. My name is Tonya
3 Wells. I am an investigator of fact for the City of
4 Detroit. I work for y'all, but I work.

5 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: You say investigator of
6 fact?

7 MS. WELLS: Of facts. Yes. I do a lot in
8 the City.

9 For the public, you should have a copy of all
10 of your statistical information. That was very
11 interesting what the officer was saying. It was moving
12 too fast for me to write it down. Okay.

13 Who is a representative of the public for the
14 taxi cab for hire commission? That would be a question
15 for Assistant Chief White.

16 I would like to be deputized to be a riding
17 officer for the City of Detroit with the cabs. There
18 is a lot of illegal activity going on with respect to
19 our P.V. licensing.

20 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: You can address the
21 Board, and then we can refer you to the appropriate
22 person, ma'am, if you don't mind.

23 MS. WELLS: I am just going to say this. I
24 would like to be deputized to write cab citations. I
25 would like to be a cab driver on patrol in the

1 community to help the enforcement division of the
2 Police Department with the vehicle for hire commission.
3 It is not just cab drivers that are breaking the law.
4 There are also bus drivers, limousine operators, and
5 such.

6 I have a complaint that I filed that is
7 unresolved in the community.

8 I have a line item presentation, I would like
9 to be a line item person making a presentation at the
10 July 2nd, 2014 meeting.

11 And finally, the P.V. bonding, licensing, and
12 reports need to be given to the Police Department, the
13 Commission because of the -- I have a presentation for
14 you, I didn't copy it multiply, but the Consumer
15 Affairs Department for the City of Detroit is also in
16 charge of what's going on. This is the vehicle for
17 hire section of the City Code.

18 I am done.

19 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Could you give that to
20 the Secretary, please.

21 MS. WELLS: Actually, I am going to give it
22 to my Commissioner.

23 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: You have to give it to
24 the Secretary.

25 MS. WELLS: This goes to him, okay.

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes, ma'am. Thank you,
2 ma'am.

3 MS. WELLS: Also this, too. That's what I
4 said.

5 MR. BROOKS: Hello. My name is Michael
6 Brooks. I work with the Black Caucus Foundation. And
7 what I work directly with is young black brothers in
8 the city that grows up without fathers. And there is a
9 lot of them.

10 I was involved in a case where there was
11 three officers made a testimony. And all three of them
12 lied. I know.

13 I am really sorry that the Chief wasn't here
14 because I really would like to hear his response.

15 What are we doing when you have an officer
16 that has a big impact on that jury, and they set up
17 there and lie?

18 We know we have some really bad officers in
19 the Department. And to sit back and put them on
20 probation, that is not the answer. They have got to
21 go. They have to go. And that's the only way we are
22 going to turn this city around. Mike Duggan, Kevyn
23 Orr, the Chief cannot do it by themselves. We all have
24 to get on board.

25 So I really would like to further this and

1 see how the Chief is handling this business, see how
2 this Board is approaching the problem. And we all know
3 that it is there. That's the reason why no one trusts
4 the police officers. And I know you know that. They
5 don't trust them. Because we have got some bad ones in
6 the group.

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: A.C. White, do you want
8 to have -- do you have anything you need to say?

9 A.C. WHITE: There was a question in there.
10 So let's get back to the question first. What was the
11 question, sir? I am sorry.

12 MR. BROOKS: What do you do when you know
13 that an officer have lied on the witness stand? Should
14 be convicted.

15 A.C. WHITE: What we do when we know an
16 officer has lied on the witness stand is a multitude of
17 things. One, is we conduct an investigation. Through
18 the Prosecutor's Office, the officer is charged with a
19 crime. And thirdly, he is most likely to lose his job.

20 MR. BROOKS: What would make an officer set
21 up on the witness stand and lie?

22 A.C. WHITE: Well, so I can't have a
23 subjective conversation because --

24 MR. BROOKS: The prosecutor.

25 A.C. WHITE: I can't, without having the

1 facts and circumstances of the issue, it is very
2 difficult to just have a random conversation. So what
3 I would direct you to do, if you have an allegation
4 against an officer, our Internal Affairs Command
5 Officer is here. I will assure you, okay, that a
6 thorough investigation will be done. And we can
7 provide the findings of that investigation to this
8 esteemed Board as well as -- well, I don't know if I
9 can provide it to you because I don't know exactly the
10 perspective in which you are coming from. If you are
11 involved in the case, then we can provide you
12 information.

13 MR. BROOKS: Yes.

14 A.C. WHITE: But if you are just presenting
15 information that you believe to be true, there could be
16 some privacy issues there that we have to adhere to. I
17 don't know. Because, again, we are having a very
18 generic conversation. So if you would speak with my
19 commander from Internal Affairs, and then we can follow
20 up with the Board at a later date.

21 MR. BROOKS: Thank you.

22 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Thank you, sir. Do you
23 have -- yes.

24 Sir, you are going to go with him.

25 MR. SCOTT: I would like to thank

1 Commissioner Crawford for giving a respectful response
2 to the Detroit Board of Police Commissioners'
3 activities and its development with the Consent
4 Judgment, and the Detroit Coalition Against Police
5 Brutality.

6 But I do want to say that in the wake of the
7 election today, that what we have been coming here for
8 the last two decades, we are thankful that changes are
9 afoot. However, I wouldn't measure them all in terms
10 of quantitative activities. I have asked many times, I
11 want to see what the qualitative circumstances are.

12 So we have been getting complaints, and I
13 know you said we should bring people here, some do,
14 some don't, some file complaints.

15 The misuse of the PR-24 has occurred also, in
16 terms of using it as an offensive as opposed to a
17 defensive weapon. I would like to see how many times
18 that's occurred, because that has occurred.

19 The other thing I would like to say is that
20 it is the discretion of the Chair to allow for point of
21 special privilege. It's not necessarily to be
22 coercive, to limit comment to a certain amount. It is
23 the discretion of the Chair in any forum to allow that.
24 And I hope that that would be a continuing
25 consideration.

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: And it will, Mr. Scott,
2 but the Secretary came up with a valid point that I
3 thought was -- that resolved that.

4 MR. SCOTT: But I'm just saying that -- this
5 is not personal, I am just saying --

6 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Oh, I understand what
7 you are saying. And I am sure that the Chair is going
8 to take the discretion that they have, but in this case
9 the Secretary had a satisfactory response for me.
10 Because we are also under that, you know, the Order 11,
11 so the Charter is not -- you know, these people end up
12 doing now, they are picking and choosing when they
13 bring in the Charter. But he is absolutely right. We
14 have done this without that. So that's what --

15 MR. SCOTT: But this brings two points.

16 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay.

17 MR. SCOTT: One in disagreement with that.

18 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes. And I just want to
19 close that out, Mr. Scott.

20 MR. SCOTT: Okay. Because I believe
21 Commissioner Warfield's term was extended. And there
22 is a precedent. There was one of the Chairs that
23 served longer than they were supposed to have served
24 under the Charter because there was not an appointment
25 in place. I would have to go back and find it.

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: You will have it.

2 Commissioner Warfield served two terms.

3 MR. SCOTT: Right.

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Consecutively.

5 MR. SCOTT: And this is the point that I
6 wanted to make. So --

7 SECRETARY ANTHONY: No.

8 MR. SCOTT: Well, you say he didn't.

9 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: He did not.

10 SECRETARY ANTHONY: Commissioner White's term
11 was in between Commissioner Warfield.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes.

13 MR. SCOTT: Well, the point is, what I am
14 raising is still, under Section 7-802, that I raised
15 the question earlier this year about Executive Order
16 11, and you wrote the letter about that relative to
17 whether or not Executive Order 11 applied to concur
18 with the Emergency Manager's position. There is still
19 a question of fact, it is a question of law, as to
20 whether or not that is, in fact, the case, or whether
21 or not the Charter is considered. That should be
22 raised with the judge, with Judge Cohn now, as to
23 whether or not the provisions of this Charter section
24 apply or not. And I think that is a question that
25 maybe your counsel could engage in.

1 So essentially all we want to do is to make
2 sure that when this is done, that in order to have the
3 support of the public, that it is done commensurate
4 with the Charter amendment which the people voted on.
5 And, you know, regardless of what Kevyn Orr thinks, the
6 people voted on this. And so that is the question.
7 And that's why it is in Federal Court at this point.
8 And that's why I think you should move to Federal
9 Court, to see whether or not that is the case, whether
10 or not that, in fact, complies with or doesn't comply
11 with it.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: I believe, Mr. Scott,
13 that the Order 11 only applies to the Chief and
14 promotions and those -- I don't think it really has
15 anything --

16 MR. SCOTT: Well, not directly, but it does,
17 in effect, have an impact on what the Police Commission
18 can and cannot do. And so, therefore, it is reflective
19 of this particular discussion. And as I said, I just
20 think that it is something that needs to be
21 investigated, because we don't know. I think it would
22 be important and prudent to ask when the Mayor intends
23 to appoint the two commissioners.

24 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: We can finish talking.
25 I agree with you. But --

1 MR. SCOTT: That was the last point I wanted
2 to make.

3 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: So we need to be clear,
4 and I understand what you are saying.

5 MR. SCOTT: Yes.

6 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: But to be fair with the
7 other citizens, we are going to -- we can resume the
8 conversation.

9 MR. SCOTT: That was the last point.

10 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Good point. Good point.
11 Appreciate that.

12 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the Chair,
13 Mr. Scott, I just want to add, point well made, and
14 point well taken, on my behalf.

15 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: We will look into that,
16 Ron, and we will just --

17 MR. SCOTT: Okay.

18 MS. ROMANO: Good afternoon. Anna Romano.

19 I truly appreciate the hard work and
20 dedication put forth by Commander Barren and the
21 Detroit Police Department in collaboration with the
22 other agencies in making the 2014 fireworks a safe
23 event. Thank you for a great job. Well done.

24 (Applause).

25 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Commissioner Crawford?

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am. Through
2 the Chair, I just have a comment on the fireworks. I
3 want to commend the Department also.

4 Also, speaking to something Mr. Brooks who
5 was in here prior, stated basically we are talking
6 about the culture of the Police Department. The Chief,
7 I note -- I think he even said something recently in
8 the media about one of the toughest things to deal with
9 is changing the culture, some individuals in the
10 Department.

11 And we talk about the fireworks, and I do --
12 I am a first amendment person. And I do understand the
13 Internet. I do understand Facebook, social media. As
14 a matter of fact, I had a few revolutionary websites
15 myself back in the day. But these two postings were
16 posted on the website telling citizens to stay out of
17 Detroit. Do not come to the city. Don't come to the
18 fireworks. I know for a fact one of them is a police
19 officer, and I am 95 percent sure the other one is too.

20 I do understand, of course I pulled up the
21 manual and researched it in terms of, you know, things
22 that -- pertaining to the social media, things you can
23 say and should not say that comes within the
24 parameters, I guess, of the Department, and may be
25 against -- a violation, but I don't know that these two

1 individuals meet that. But I would ask that it is
2 looked into. Because it is really engaging in insane
3 economics. It is your paycheck. If you tell the
4 citizens not to come to the city, you tell them not to
5 spend money, if you tell the citizens to move out the
6 city, you know, that's why we have all these pay cuts
7 and benefits we are losing now, because the key thing
8 is you have to understand the correlation between the
9 economics and the population.

10 And by the way, in today's newspaper in the
11 media, Wayne County has lost 2.5 percent of its
12 population. Most of that is attributed to Detroit.
13 Detroit is 788-some-odd thousand. So I just want to
14 note there is a -- it is foolish to do this. I mean, I
15 personally think the police officers should be about --
16 if they are going to post anything on the Internet or
17 on Facebook, I am just saying, if you are going to say
18 that you hear or make it as safe as possible, do
19 everything that you can do to make it safe and welcome
20 everybody in the city, and those from outside the city,
21 too, so...

22 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Good evening.

23 A.C. WHITE: I would like to comment on that.
24 I would like to take a look at this and we will have it
25 looked in to.

1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Thank you, sir.

2 A.C. WHITE: Certainly you can post on your
3 personal account, your opinion. But if it brings the
4 Department into ill repute, is what's in the policy,
5 then you violate Department policy. So we will look
6 into it.

7 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. Thank you.

8 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Mr. Welborne?

9 MR. WELBORNE: Good afternoon, Board. Bill
10 Welborne, W-e-l-b-o-r-n-e, Citywide.

11 I am here begging again for help. We have
12 been over to Focus: HOPE for the last couple days, work
13 with the young kids over there trying to recruit. What
14 we are trying to do now, we are trying to recruit kids
15 from -- that's interested in aviation, from 9 to 17,
16 but they have to qualify because everybody can't fly.
17 And everybody that works in aviation don't fly. There
18 is other jobs in aviation that you don't have to fly
19 on.

20 The thing we have been pushing lately, this
21 young lady from California, 16 years old, she made a
22 solo flight, a roundtrip solo flight from California to
23 Detroit and back. And we thought that was, you know,
24 that was great.

25 And her role model is Mrs. Coleman, a lot of

1 people don't know who Mrs. Coleman is. Mrs. Coleman
2 came before Amelia Earhart. She was the first black
3 female pilot. She had to go to France in order to be
4 able to fly. But we use her as a, you know -- to push
5 our things with young kids. We are looking for kids
6 that -- we offer scholarships. Every second Sunday, we
7 have free rides out to the airport, from 10:00 to 2:00.
8 You know, pick the kids up to fly around in the
9 aircraft. But we -- you all be out in the
10 neighborhoods, wherever you are at --

11 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: What's the criteria,
12 Mr. Welborne?

13 MR. WELBORNE: Well, the main thing, they
14 have to be interested in aviation. Most of the kids
15 come there, we work with them.

16 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Now, if they are
17 interested, how old do they have to be, the age?

18 MR. WELBORNE: From 9 to 17, I think I said 7
19 before, from 9 to 17 --

20 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay.

21 MR. WELBORNE: -- to work with these kids.

22 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: And you would like us to
23 refer people to -- refer young people to --

24 MR. WELBORNE: Right. If anybody want to
25 join us, just have them get in touch with me.

1 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. And your number,
2 how can they get in touch with you?

3 MR. WELBORNE: 204-2477. That's 313.

4 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: 204-2477?

5 MR. WELBORNE: Right. Let Commander Benson
6 know. He knows my number. Just about everybody down
7 here knows my number.

8 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: We got you covered.
9 Okay.

10 MR. WELBORNE: We are really interested
11 because somebody carry on traditions.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: We are going to take
13 care. Mr. Brown, you done forgot that bell over there.

14 MR. WELBORNE: That's okay. He got me last
15 time.

16 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: No, he didn't.
17 Okay. Ms. Pannel?

18 MS. PANNEL: Good afternoon. I just wanted
19 everybody to know that Bernice Smith is in the
20 hospital. I don't know how --

21 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: I was getting ready to
22 ask about her.

23 MS. PANNEL: I don't know.

24 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Because I have been
25 trying to call her for the last three days.

1 MS. PANNEL: I just heard today she is in the
2 hospital.

3 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Just for your
4 information, she called me, I think it was Tuesday, she
5 was real sick. And somebody had went to the store and
6 brought her some orange juice, and she could hardly
7 breathe when she got back. So I have been calling her
8 since then, and I haven't been able to get her. So I
9 will see if I can find out where she is at.

10 MS. PANNEL: If I find out, I will let you
11 know.

12 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: All right. Please.

13 Any other communications?

14 If not, I am going to move for adjournment.

15 Oh, I am sorry.

16 A.C. WHITE: One quick thing. I apologize.
17 I should have done it with the earlier report.

18 The Chief was not able to be here today, he
19 is in Lansing, he tried to make it, but with traffic,
20 to be here.

21 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay.

22 A.C. WHITE: He wanted me to bring up some
23 issues that are going on with Narcotics. I don't know
24 if you have heard them. We are not shutting down
25 Narcotics. We are changing Narcotics. We are going to

1 develop a major violator section with Narcotics. We
2 will be transferring some officers back to the street.
3 We have officers who have seniority as high as 18 years
4 that have been there. We want to refresh Narcotics,
5 get some people that don't have a lot of experience in
6 Narcotics, because you can teach new good behavior, and
7 you want to make sure that you, you know, change some
8 of the cultural things that are happening there. Not
9 all bad. But we just want to refresh it and clean it
10 up a bit. So that's what's going on with Narcotics.
11 It is not going away. It is not being shut down. It
12 is being changed.

13 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Good. Because I heard
14 you were doing away with it.

15 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: It was breaking news
16 last night.

17 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes, breaking news.

18 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Madam Chair, I have a
19 question.

20 Is there going to be something public to
21 state that, Chief?

22 A.C. WHITE: Yes.

23 COMMISSIONER MOORE: The same way it went out
24 that way, something else to come behind that?

25 A.C. WHITE: Yes. We are working on a few

1 things now. We are looking for the officers that are
2 going to replace the officers that are leaving. The
3 new unit will be put up July 15th. In between now and
4 that time, there will be something to the public.

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair?

7 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Yes, sir.

8 COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to say I
9 think that's a great initiative. I think I heard the
10 Chief speak about that about three or four months ago,
11 rotating the personnel, and that's an idea, because
12 some people has been buried in narcotics. They
13 wouldn't know narcotics if they seen narcotics, but
14 they have just been buried, so I think this -- I really
15 commend this reorganization of that particular effort.

16 A.C. WHITE: Thank you.

17 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: Okay. Commissioner
18 White?

19 VICE CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Madam Chair, not on
20 that note, and not to belabor the meeting either. I
21 did want to personally congratulate the Department on a
22 job well done during fireworks. I did have an
23 opportunity to tag along, if you will, to watch a
24 number of operations, particularly the Juvenile
25 Detention, and I think that was an area that was paid

1 more attention to this year than previous years.

2 And I do have some other recommendations that
3 I will commit to writing and share that through the
4 incoming Chair and to the Chief's Office.

5 But also, Madam Chair, you stated a number of
6 things that were indicative of the challenges to this
7 body during the course of the year, and I also think it
8 is complimentary to your style of leadership that you
9 have led us through this transformation as a body. I
10 just wanted to personally congratulate you for a job
11 well done under your leadership in getting us to this
12 point. And also offer a word of support to our
13 incoming Vice Chair and Chair, look forward to serving
14 under both of your leaderships.

15 (Applause).

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madam Chair, I also want
17 to, as incoming Chair, thank you for your leadership.
18 It has been a smooth transition, if we want to use that
19 term, and I just want to thank the Vice Chair, he has
20 just been really great in terms of the leadership and
21 accord that we have established. I am looking forward
22 to working with you as a Commissioner. And I am pretty
23 sure you are going to be at my elbow in terms of
24 helping that experience. I look forward to that type
25 of interaction.

1 For the public, I just want to say that my
2 chairmanship, I will lay out some things. I have some
3 concerns. But I want everybody to know I am
4 pro-police, I am pro-community. I am pro for doing the
5 right thing at all times. We have some bumps. We must
6 deal with those issues. I think this Department is
7 moving forward in reference to the issues that some of
8 us have experienced in working in this particular
9 field, so it will give us some insight, but this will
10 be one Board, elected, appointed, and, you know, it is
11 one Board. And I am hoping that we can flush out some
12 issues, you know, in reference to presenting a public
13 front.

14 I am impressed in terms of what the Council
15 has moved forward with the Mayor, in reference to
16 working together to move the spirit of Detroit in terms
17 of collective. Because that's what the people want.
18 That's what we want. We have that strong desire in
19 society to have a safe and clean city and a government
20 that works for the people. And that is what this Board
21 is all about, since 1974. They have some concerns, but
22 at least they were volunteered, willing to step
23 forward. So I just want to see that spirit of
24 cooperation continue.

25 And thank you, once again, with the Board's

1 support for chairmanship.

2 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: And you are welcome.

3 And as I told you, if you become Chair, you have got my
4 full support.

5 And so do you, Ms. Carter, you know, Ms. New
6 Commissioner Carter.

7 Okay. So move for adjournment.

8 COMMISSIONER BYRD: So moved.

9 CHAIRPERSON TAYLOR: It has been moved and
10 supported. Let's go. We adjourn.

11 (Proceedings concluded at 4:07 p.m.)

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF MICHIGAN)
) SS
COUNTY OF ST. CLAIR)

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I reported
stenographically the foregoing proceedings and
testimony under oath at the time and place hereinbefore
set forth; that thereafter the same was reduced to
computer transcription under my supervision; and that
this is a full, true, complete and correct
transcription of said proceedings.



Rhonda M. Foster

Rhonda M. Foster,
CSR 3612

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: 3-11-2015

A
able 12:3 13:11
 15:11 20:11
 21:1 22:2,12
 22:13 23:9
 53:4 55:8,18
absolutely 10:9
 46:13
accept 37:16,17
 37:18
accepted 37:20
accomplishment
 13:10
accord 58:21
account 52:3
accountability
 15:17
action 17:17
 20:25
activism 23:17
 23:21
activities 45:3
 45:10
activity 40:18
Adams 28:8 30:11
 30:14,16 31:21
 32:2 36:9 37:3
 37:7
add 49:13
added 26:19 27:6
 28:1
addition 14:13
additional 9:5
 15:14
address 33:4
 40:20
addressed 9:15
addressing 34:21
adequate 14:5
adhere 44:16
adhering 14:19
adjourn 60:10
adjournment
 55:14 60:7
admit 24:14
adopt 26:8,20
adopted 26:19
 27:6
Affairs 41:15
 44:4,19
afoot 45:9

afternoon 3:5
 4:13 10:18,20
 49:18 52:9
 54:18
age 53:17
agencies 14:22
 16:9 17:1
 49:22
agency 11:12
agenda 5:2,13,24
 33:15 34:16
aggregate 22:3
ago 9:3 22:13
 24:1 27:9
 57:10
agree 23:22 24:4
 48:25
agreeable 13:1
Agreement 12:15
 20:3,6
agreements 11:9
ahead 39:13
aircraft 53:9
airport 53:7
Alan 4:21
Aliyah 4:17
allegation 44:3
allegations 6:20
 6:25
alleged 6:15
allow 14:3 45:20
 45:23
Amelia 53:2
amenable 13:1
amended 18:6
amendment 48:4
 50:12
amount 45:22
and/or 15:23
Angie 11:2
Anna 49:18
announce 30:25
 36:9
Announcements
 38:7
annually 16:1
 23:1 27:14
answer 9:7 20:25
 20:25 42:20
Anthony 2:11 3:8
 3:11,14,17,20
 3:23 4:1,4,6,9
 4:16 6:3 32:5
 35:15 36:6
 47:7,10
anybody 30:8
 39:19 53:24
anymore 12:4
 33:25
apologize 55:16
Applause 36:14
 37:25 49:24
 58:15
applied 47:17
applies 48:13
apply 47:24
appoint 34:2
 48:23
appointed 32:17
 33:25 59:10
appointees 35:25
appointment
 46:24
appreciate 9:18
 49:11,19
appreciation
 25:5
approaching 43:2
appropriate 7:24
 13:24 40:21
approve 5:2,14
approved 5:13,24
 15:21
archives 26:19
 27:6
area 57:25
areas 6:20 7:4
 17:15
argument 35:20
Arizona 16:11
Arrest 11:10
 13:5
arrests 18:8
arrive 20:17
aside 23:9
asked 33:8 39:5
 45:10
asking 16:9
 23:11
asset 10:11
assets 26:3
assigned 10:22
 12:19,23 21:8
assistance 16:4

Assistant 19:22
 40:15
assisting 9:5
assure 44:5
attention 8:5
 58:1
attorney 4:18
 12:22
Attorneys 12:22
attributed 51:12
audience 34:15
 38:13
audit 11:2,2
 17:20,21,24
 18:1,7
auditors 17:22
audits 17:23,24
 18:3
Avenue 38:10
Avern 12:20
aviation 52:15
 52:17,18 53:14
awards 25:4
awareness 21:22
Aye 5:11,22
 26:16 27:3
A.C 2:16 4:12,13
 9:21 10:12
 16:23,24 20:21
 21:17 22:11
 24:4 39:10,14
 39:18,21 40:1
 43:7,9,15,22
 43:25 44:14
 51:23 52:2
 55:16,22 56:22
 56:25 57:16

B
back 15:23 16:17
 17:16 20:18
 34:7,8 42:19
 43:10 46:25
 50:15 52:23
 55:7 56:2
bad 24:7,8 42:18
 43:5 56:9
Barren 49:20
based 11:4 36:2
basically 35:8
 50:5
basis 21:19

bearing 32:22
begging 52:11
beginning 27:10
behalf 25:24
 49:14
behavior 11:7
 21:21 56:6
belabor 57:20
believe 32:17
 44:15 46:20
 48:12
bell 2:7 3:24,25
 5:3,17 19:16
 20:9 21:16
 22:19 26:11,22
 28:18,21 29:13
 29:17,20,20,25
 30:3,3 31:7,8
 31:12,16,19,22
 31:25 32:6,21
 33:13 34:13,22
 35:3,6 36:12
 36:17 37:24
 38:3 54:13
 57:6,8 58:16
benefits 51:7
Bennett 25:21,21
 26:2,6,21 27:5
Benson 54:5
Bernice 54:19
best 14:19 25:9
better 16:8 20:6
 24:3,9
Bettison 39:15
 39:18
beyond 15:15
big 42:16
Bill 52:9
bit 11:22 20:15
 56:10
bi-annual 16:1
black 22:2 42:6
 42:7 53:2
board 1:5 3:6,8
 4:9,18 8:9 9:1
 9:24 17:5 25:2
 25:23 27:10,11
 27:11,12,14,15
 27:23,24 28:3
 28:4,6 30:12
 32:1,14,15
 33:6,11,18

34:8,12 35:20
 35:21,22,24
 36:3,11 37:14
 37:20 38:8
 40:21 42:24
 43:2 44:8,20
 45:2 52:9
 59:10,11,20
Board's 26:19
 27:6 59:25
body 58:7,9
bogged 20:13
bonding 41:11
breaking 41:3
 56:15,17
breathe 55:7
Brian 25:1,6,12
 26:8,18
bring 45:13
 46:13 55:22
brings 46:15
 52:3
Brooks 42:5,6
 43:12,20,24
 44:13,21 50:4
brothers 42:7
brought 8:5
 23:17,20,21
 55:6
Brown 4:20 37:16
 54:13
Brutality 23:19
 24:5 45:5
building 13:19
bumps 59:5
buried 57:12,14
Burton 2:8 4:2,3
 24:24 25:2,15
 28:24 29:3,6
 29:10 32:11,19
 32:20 34:17
Burton's 34:21
bus 41:4
business 24:23
 27:7,8 34:19
 38:24 43:1
Byrd 2:5 3:18,19
 5:6 26:23 60:8
B-e-t-t-i-s-o-n
 39:18

C

cab 40:14,24,25
 41:3
cabs 40:17
California 8:25
 52:21,22
call 3:9 5:1,14
 14:2 21:14
 31:6,12 32:23
 54:25
called 22:4 55:4
calling 31:13,14
 55:7
Captain 15:22
car 38:23
care 34:18 54:13
career 24:10
carries 32:9
carry 54:11
Carter 2:9 4:4,5
 36:18 37:2,12
 37:14,18,22,23
 60:5,6
case 12:18,23
 13:19 33:20
 42:10 44:11
 46:8 47:20
 48:9
cases 6:12,13,14
 6:19 7:5,10,19
 7:19,20 8:7
 9:13,15
Caucus 42:6
cause 23:17
cells 14:1,2
Center 9:4
certain 34:7
 45:22
certainly 10:10
 24:8,10,12
 52:2
CERTIFICATE 61:1
CERTIFY 61:7
chain 15:21
Chair 3:11 4:16
 5:3 7:16 9:11
 10:18 18:24
 19:16 22:23
 25:22 27:11,11
 27:22,22 28:5
 28:15,18 29:12
 29:12,16 30:3
 30:9,20,21

32:1,21 33:13
 33:16 34:13,14
 35:3,15,19
 36:4,8,8,11,16
 36:17,18 37:12
 37:14,20 39:10
 45:20,23 46:7
 49:12 50:2
 56:18 57:6,19
 58:4,5,13,13
 58:16,17,19
 60:3
Chairman 27:16
 37:24
chairmanship
 59:2 60:1
Chairperson 2:2
 2:3 3:5,7,13
 4:11,14,25 5:4
 5:7,12,16,18
 5:23 7:11 8:14
 9:9,19 10:15
 18:22 19:15
 24:16,20 25:17
 26:7,10,12,17
 26:24 27:4,14
 28:19,20,21,25
 29:4,7,11,15
 29:18 30:2,6,9
 30:11,15 31:1
 31:10,13,18,23
 32:3,7,16 33:3
 33:10,23 34:20
 34:24 35:5,11
 35:14,23,23
 36:6,10,15,19
 36:25 37:5,9
 37:17,19,23
 38:1,4 39:8,13
 39:22 40:5,20
 41:19,23 42:1
 43:7 44:22
 46:1,6,16,18
 47:1,4,9,12
 48:12,24 49:3
 49:6,10,15,25
 51:22 52:8
 53:11,16,20,22
 54:1,4,8,12,16
 54:21,24 55:3
 55:12,21 56:13
 56:17 57:7,17

57:19 60:2,9
Chairs 46:22
challenge 33:17
challenges 58:6
change 23:20
 56:7
changed 56:12
changes 45:8
changing 50:9
 55:25
charge 41:16
charged 43:18
chart 7:9
Charter 27:14
 33:5,7 34:4,8
 34:25 35:10,17
 46:11,13,24
 47:21,23 48:4
checks 14:6,6,7
chemical 15:1
Chief 4:19 6:12
 7:13,15,16
 8:17 9:17,20
 9:22 10:8,13
 10:16 14:12
 19:21,22 28:4
 28:6 40:15
 42:13,23 43:1
 48:13 50:6
 55:18 56:21
 57:10
Chief's 4:12
 58:4
chime 35:16
choosing 19:11
 46:12
circumstances
 44:1 45:11
citations 40:24
citizen 6:4,23
 18:10 21:23
citizens 17:8
 22:18 25:3,7
 25:25 49:7
 50:16 51:4,5
city 17:3,4
 23:17 25:7,25
 40:3,8,17
 41:15,17 42:8
 42:22 50:17
 51:4,6,20,20
 59:19

Citywide 52:10
civil 10:17,22
 11:7 15:8
civilian 17:21
civilians 17:20
CLAIR 61:5
clarification
 15:23
clause 24:24
clean 56:9 59:19
clear 18:5 49:3
cleared 20:15
close 30:20,21
 36:24,25 46:19
closed 6:13,23
 6:24 7:5,10
 31:9,11
closing 7:20
 9:12
clothing 13:25
Coalition 23:18
 24:5 45:4
Code 41:17
coercive 45:22
Cohn 12:20 47:22
Coleman 52:25
 53:1,1
collaboration
 49:21
collect 17:11
collective 59:17
come 11:21,25
 15:13 16:9,21
 17:1,18 18:14
 19:17 34:11
 38:13 39:5
 50:17,17 51:4
 53:15 56:24
comes 23:13
 50:23
coming 16:16,19
 35:8,9 44:10
 45:7
command 2:15
 15:21 44:4
commander 10:22
 19:1,17 24:25
 25:6,11 26:8
 26:18 39:14
 44:19 49:20
 54:5
commands 17:16

Commencing 1:15
commend 19:21
 23:15,24 50:3
 57:15
commensurate
 48:3
comment 9:21
 34:17,21,22,23
 35:4,6,14
 45:22 50:2
 51:23
comments 9:22
commission 32:22
 40:14 41:2,13
 48:17 61:20
Commissioner 2:4
 2:5,7,8,9,10
 3:7,12,14,16
 3:17,19,20,22
 3:23,25 4:1,3
 4:4,5,6,8 5:3
 5:6,17 8:6
 9:11 18:24
 19:5,14,16
 20:9 21:16
 22:19,22 23:14
 24:24 25:2,15
 25:19,22 26:11
 26:22,23 28:17
 28:18,20,22,24
 29:3,6,10,13
 29:17,19,24,25
 30:1,3,5,23,24
 31:7,8,12,16
 31:19,19,21,25
 32:6,8,11,18
 32:20,21 33:13
 34:13,21,22
 35:3,5,6,13
 36:12,17,18
 37:2,11,18,22
 37:23 38:3
 41:22 45:1
 46:21 47:2,10
 47:11 49:12,25
 50:1 52:1,7
 56:15,18,23
 57:5,6,8,17
 58:16,22 60:6
 60:8
commissioners
 1:5 2:1 3:6

5:11,22 10:19
 10:20 18:22
 25:3,24 26:16
 27:3 28:1 32:1
 32:17,24,25
 33:21 35:17
 36:1,12 37:15
 37:21 39:8,11
 45:2 48:23
commit 58:3
commitment 25:7
 26:1
Committee 24:21
communication
 10:3
communications
 6:18 38:12
 55:13
community 23:18
 38:17 39:3,15
 41:1,7
compared 6:6
comparison 6:9
complaint 41:6
complaints 6:4,5
 6:16,23,24,25
 11:5 14:10,11
 18:10 21:20,23
 21:25 22:1
 45:12,14
complete 61:12
completes 4:24
 7:8
compliance 10:23
 11:21 12:1,5
 13:6 16:10
 17:9,9,13,15
 17:18,19 18:16
 18:18
complies 48:10
complimentary
 58:8
comply 48:10
complying 16:5
comprehensive
 13:15
comprised 17:20
computer 61:11
concern 6:20 7:4
concerns 59:3,21
concluded 8:10
 60:11

concludes 8:12
concur 47:17
Conditions 11:9
 11:13, 16, 18
 13:13 23:10
conduct 43:17
conducted 8:22
 15:20
conducting 17:23
 17:24
Confinement 11:9
 11:13, 16, 18
 13:14 23:10
conflict 22:7
congratulate
 9:12 25:11
 26:5 57:21
 58:10
consecutive
 27:15 35:18
 36:5
Consecutively
 47:4
consent 10:24
 11:13, 17 12:2
 15:16 16:3, 6
 17:22 18:18
 19:25 45:3
considerable
 9:24
consideration
 45:25
considered 47:21
consistent 15:19
consistently
 15:18
constitutiona...
 17:6
consulted 33:8
Consumer 41:14
consummate 10:2
contact 39:14
continue 38:5
 59:24
continued 25:9
continuing 14:21
 18:3 45:24
continuum 15:2
control 21:6
 32:25
conversation
 43:23 44:2, 18

 49:8
convicted 43:14
Cook 12:18
cooperation
 59:24
copy 40:9 41:14
Corktown 38:17
 38:20 39:4
correct 24:14
 61:12
corrections
 15:24
corrective 17:17
 20:24
correlation 51:8
costing 23:1
costly 22:24
 23:22
Council 59:14
counsel 47:25
count 6:5 30:23
 30:25
counts 30:24
County 9:4 16:11
 51:11 61:5
couple 9:3 16:13
 38:22 52:12
course 8:7 22:8
 50:20 58:7
Court 4:23 48:7
 48:9
courts 23:12
coverage 7:25
covered 54:8
covers 18:14
Craig 28:4
Crawford 2:6
 3:21, 22 22:22
 23:14 28:17
 30:1, 5 45:1
 49:12, 25 50:1
 52:1, 7 56:15
crime 43:19
criteria 53:11
CSR 1:17 61:18
cultural 56:8
culture 50:6, 9
currently 7:18
 7:23 14:22
custodial 18:8
customary 15:5
customer 22:9, 11

cuts 51:6

D

daily 21:19
data 22:3
date 33:18 44:20
Davis-Drake 4:19
 7:16
day 27:10 50:15
days 7:21 9:14
 52:12 54:25
deadlines 20:14
deal 50:8 59:6
dealt 20:24
Debra 38:16
decades 45:8
December 18:13
decision 37:13
decree 11:19
 12:7 19:25
dedication 26:2
 49:20
defensive 45:17
demeanor 6:21
 7:6
demographic 22:6
Department 2:14
 8:8, 19 11:3, 4
 11:12 12:21
 13:10 14:24
 16:7, 8, 17 17:6
 17:10 19:21
 20:19 22:25
 23:15, 24 24:3
 25:4, 25 26:3
 28:5 39:2 41:2
 41:12, 15 42:19
 49:21 50:3, 6
 50:10, 24 52:4
 52:5 57:21
 59:6
deputized 40:16
 40:24
DeShaune 10:21
desire 59:18
detained 15:3, 4
detainees 13:17
detaining 14:8
detection 13:15
detention 11:10
 13:5 18:8
 57:25

determine 12:12
 17:12
Detroit 1:5, 14
 2:14 3:1 11:4
 11:15 25:4, 4, 7
 25:23, 24, 25
 28:5 38:9 40:4
 40:17 41:15
 45:2, 4 49:21
 50:17 51:12, 13
 52:23 59:16
develop 13:14
 56:1
development 45:3
device 14:25
devices 14:2
different 11:23
 22:12
difficult 44:2
direct 44:3
direction 39:6
directly 42:7
 48:16
disagreement
 46:17
discrepancies
 15:22
discretion 45:20
 45:23 46:8
discuss 12:23
discussion 5:9
 5:20 26:14
 27:1 48:19
disre 33:22
District 2:4, 5, 6
 2:7, 8, 9, 10
division 10:22
 11:2 41:1
document 15:11
documenting 14:7
doing 14:6 16:19
 17:2, 7 18:2
 24:11 30:13
 42:15 46:12
 56:14 59:4
dollars 22:25
 23:4, 7
Domine 11:1
Donnell 2:3 3:12
 28:5, 23 29:3, 4
 29:5, 8, 19
doors 10:3

DRAKE 7:15 8:17
 9:17 10:8,13
drastic 19:18
driver 40:25
drivers 41:3,4
Duggan 42:22
D-e-b-r-a 38:16
D.C 8:25

E

E 2:7,8 3:23 4:1
Earhart 53:2
earlier 47:15
 55:17
easy 24:7
economics 51:3,9
effect 48:17
effective 12:1
 36:13
effort 57:15
efforts 9:12,16
 25:8
either 25:17
 57:20
elbow 58:23
elect 27:14
 28:15 30:2
elected 28:1
 33:21 59:10
election 27:10
 33:14,16,19
 35:19,22 45:7
Emergency 27:23
 34:6 47:18
employee 18:9
empowered 33:19
encounter 19:19
encouragement
 28:12
ended 11:24 12:2
 15:2
enforcement
 11:12 41:1
engage 47:25
engaging 51:2
ensure 17:7,18
ensuring 10:23
entertain 33:14
entertaining
 34:14
equipment 14:1
especially 20:11

20:18
essentially 48:1
established
 58:21
esteemed 44:8
evacuate 13:16
evacuating 13:19
evaluate 21:11
evening 40:2
 51:22
event 13:17
 49:23
everybody 14:7
 27:19 51:20
 52:16,17 54:6
 54:19 59:3
exactly 44:9
example 16:20
exception 15:12
exceptions 15:13
exciting 28:14
Executive 2:11
 27:25 47:15,17
exonerated 7:2
expectant 8:1
expected 7:22
expense 39:2
experience 56:5
 58:24
experienced 59:8
experiencing
 23:25
expire 12:11
 20:5
Expires 61:20
exposed 23:18
extended 46:21
extension 11:22
 12:10,10,14
extensions 11:24
e-mail 16:11
 32:12 35:7

F

Facebook 50:13
 51:17
facility 13:18
fact 40:3,6
 47:19,20 48:10
 50:14,18
facts 40:7 44:1
fair 49:6

faithful 25:8
far 19:24
fashion 9:13
fast 40:12
fathers 42:8
favor 5:10,21
 26:15 27:2
 31:15,21,25
 32:8
feasible 34:10
Federal 10:25
 11:14 12:17,21
 48:7,8
feel 16:22,24,25
fees 23:11
female 53:3
field 59:9
figure 6:8
file 11:23 12:9
 12:14,14 45:14
filed 6:13,14,16
 6:19 11:23
 41:6
final 11:24
finally 8:4 12:3
 41:11
find 10:4 14:22
 15:12 17:15
 18:3 46:25
 55:9,10
findings 6:25
 44:7
finish 48:24
fire 13:15,17
fireworks 49:22
 50:2,11,18
 57:22
first 6:2 11:11
 11:16 21:3
 27:21,21,22,23
 27:24,25 29:21
 30:23 31:8
 35:21 43:10
 50:12 53:2
fit 21:7
five 12:9 36:1
five-year 12:7
flexibility
 20:16
flight 52:22,22
floor 15:7
flush 59:11

fly 52:16,17,18
 53:4,8
Focus 52:12
follow 16:20
 39:5 44:19
following 14:15
 14:18
foolish 51:14
force 7:6 11:10
 12:7 13:4 15:2
 18:7,18 20:21
 20:23
forced 14:20
foregoing 61:8
forgot 54:13
forth 49:20
 61:10
forthcoming 33:1
fortunate 38:19
forum 45:23
forward 12:13,24
 23:8 33:4,16
 33:22 34:15,18
 35:1 36:3 38:5
 38:13 58:13,21
 58:24 59:7,15
 59:23
Foster 1:17 4:22
 61:17
Foundation 42:6
four 35:25 57:10
France 53:3
free 53:7
freeway 38:17
frisks 18:11
front 4:18 59:13
full 4:9 12:1
 32:14,15 33:6
 35:24 60:4
 61:12
fun 28:14
further 42:25
future 12:25

G

gearing 7:23
generally 15:12
generic 44:18
George 2:11 3:8
getting 13:12
 23:6 45:12
 54:21 58:11

give 8:11 20:15
 39:6 41:19,21
 41:23 59:9
given 11:14
 41:12
giving 45:1
glad 23:23 38:2
go 15:14,23 34:7
 36:3 38:22,23
 39:13 42:21,21
 44:24 46:25
 53:3 60:10
goes 10:9 41:25
going 5:1 6:1
 8:1 11:23
 12:13,13,14,23
 12:24 16:11
 17:17 20:4
 22:3 23:8,12
 23:12 24:23
 26:7,20 27:7
 27:18 28:16,22
 31:6 32:25
 33:25 34:2,9
 34:10 38:6,12
 40:18,23 41:16
 41:21 42:22
 44:24 46:7
 49:7 51:16,17
 54:12 55:14,23
 55:25 56:10,11
 56:20 57:2
 58:23
good 3:5 4:13
 8:16,18 9:7
 10:6,18,20
 16:22,24,25
 22:20 40:2
 49:10,10,18
 51:22 52:9
 54:18 56:6,13
Goodness 38:1
gotten 28:12
government 10:25
 11:14 59:19
great 49:23
 52:24 57:9
 58:20
group 43:6
groups 24:5
grows 42:8
guess 24:18

50:24
guilty 19:20
gun 15:1
guy 21:25
guys 11:25 16:19

H

hand 31:16
handgun 19:3,8
handle 39:3
handling 19:19
 43:1
hands 31:18 32:2
 32:3 37:11
hang 14:3
Hanson 4:23
happen 39:7
happened 13:20
happening 14:22
 56:8
hard 49:19
hardworking 10:3
Harvey 11:2
hat 10:6
hazardous 14:1
head 22:20
Headquarters
 15:7 38:10
health 13:23
hear 42:14 51:18
heard 55:1,24
 56:13 57:9
held 12:16
Hello 42:5
help 16:14 31:2
 36:7 41:1
 52:11
helping 58:24
hereinbefore
 61:9
high 56:3
highest 18:17
 25:9 26:4
hire 40:14 41:2
 41:17
history 11:11
hit 22:19
holding 13:18
 14:1,2
homicide 15:5,6
hope 45:24 52:12
hoping 12:25

20:8 59:11
hospital 54:20
 55:2
hours 15:10,15
humane 19:20

I

idea 57:11
identified 22:15
 24:6
identify 13:16
ill 52:4
illegal 40:18
impact 16:7
 23:21 32:23
 42:16 48:17
impaneled 32:23
implement 13:14
 14:23
important 10:4
 14:13 16:15
 17:3 48:22
importantly 9:25
impressed 59:14
improvement 9:24
 19:18
inappropriate
 33:1
include 8:19
included 8:21
includes 4:17
including 8:7
incoming 58:4,13
 58:17
increase 6:7,10
increasing 7:22
indicative 58:6
individual 11:7
individuals
 30:22 50:9
 51:1
information 13:3
 15:14 17:11,14
 40:10 44:12,15
 55:4
initially 11:19
initiative 57:9
injuries 18:8
innocent 19:20
insane 51:2
insight 59:9
intends 48:22

interacting
 21:18
interaction
 20:17 58:25
interactions
 22:17
interested 52:15
 53:14,17 54:10
interesting 28:2
 40:11
intermediate
 19:2,6
Internal 44:4,19
Internet 50:13
 51:16
intervention
 22:16
introduce 4:15
introducing 15:2
introduction
 4:24
invaluable 26:3
investigated
 48:21
investigation
 11:4 14:12
 43:17 44:6,7
investigations
 6:12 15:20,20
investigator
 4:19 6:12 7:14
 7:15,16 8:17
 9:17,23 10:8
 10:13 14:12
 28:6 40:3,5
involved 6:14,15
 6:19,25 9:4,5
 42:10 44:11
in-service 15:25
issue 11:21 44:1
issues 44:16
 55:23 59:6,7
 59:12
item 34:16 41:8
 41:9

J

jails 11:15
James 2:16 4:12
 11:1
January 18:14
 32:23 33:20,21

Jessica 2:2 3:7
job 14:17 43:19
 49:23 57:22
 58:10
jobs 52:18
join 53:25
journey 23:23
judge 12:11,17
 12:17,17,20,21
 20:4 47:22,22
judgement 16:6
judgment 11:13
 11:17,18 12:2
 12:3,4,6 13:14
 14:20 15:16
 16:4 18:19
 20:4 45:4
judgments 10:24
 11:14 17:22
judo 22:9,11
juice 55:6
Julian 12:18
July 11:8,24
 12:11 36:13
 38:8 41:10
 57:3

June 1:16 3:2
 5:2,15 12:2
jury 42:16
Justice 11:3
 12:21
Juvenile 57:24

K

keep 10:6 15:7
 15:15
keeping 9:13
 14:19
keeps 10:3
kept 15:3
Kevyn 42:22 48:5
key 51:7
kids 52:13,14
 53:5,5,8,14,21
Kimberly 25:20
 25:21 26:2,6
 26:21 27:5
kind 16:18 39:4
 39:5
know 8:15 9:1
 11:19,25 12:24
 14:17,18 15:5

16:8,16,23
 17:1,6 19:19
 20:6,13,15,20
 21:10,24,24
 23:16,16 24:4
 24:6 27:20
 30:7,8,8 32:13
 33:7,24 34:8,9
 34:10,11 35:7
 35:8 39:2
 42:12,18 43:2
 43:4,4,12,15
 44:8,9,17
 45:13 46:10,11
 48:5,21 50:18
 50:21,25 51:6
 52:23 53:1,4,8
 54:6,19,20,23
 55:11,23 56:7
 57:13 59:3,10
 59:12 60:5
known 6:15
knows 21:17
 30:12 54:6,7

L

L 2:5 3:18
lady 52:21
language 11:20
Lansing 55:19
laptop 39:1
lately 52:20
launched 11:3
law 11:12 41:3
 47:19
lay 59:2
leadership 58:8
 58:11,17,20
leaderships
 58:14
leading 6:16,20
 7:4
leave 8:2 34:9
leaving 34:7
 57:2
led 58:9
legal 33:17
lethal 19:8
letter 47:16
let's 10:16
 35:11,12 43:10
 60:10

level 18:18
liaison 17:10
licensing 40:19
 41:11
lie 24:8 42:17
 43:21
lied 42:12 43:13
 43:16
lieutenant 11:1
 20:11,13
lifelong 26:1
light 19:24
 23:18
limit 45:22
limousine 41:4
line 41:8,9
Lisa 2:9 4:4
 36:18 37:2,11
 37:12,14,23
little 11:22
 20:15
locked 38:25
lodged 14:10
long 13:11 15:5
 16:15 19:17
 23:23
longer 11:22
 12:4 13:7,9
 15:4 18:17
 23:10 46:23
look 8:23 12:25
 13:8 18:9,10
 20:4 22:3
 49:15 51:24
 52:5 58:13,24
looked 11:5 51:2
 51:25
looking 8:14,16
 8:17 9:7 11:19
 12:13 14:23
 20:1,6,7 38:20
 53:5 57:1
 58:21
lose 43:19
losing 51:7
lost 16:18 51:11
lot 20:14 21:20
 22:12 27:21
 40:7,18 42:9
 52:25 56:5
lowered 23:11

M

M 1:17 61:17
Madam 3:11 4:16
 5:3 7:15 10:18
 18:24 19:16
 25:22 30:9
 32:21 33:13
 34:13 35:3,15
 36:17 56:18
 57:6,19 58:5
 58:16
magistrate 15:10
main 53:13
major 56:1
making 13:24
 17:5 41:9
 49:22
males 22:2,2
management 18:10
 21:22
Manager 4:20
 11:2 17:21
 27:24 34:6
Manager's 47:18
mandate 21:2
mandated 21:4
mandates 16:5
mandatory 15:25
manual 50:21
map 7:9,9
March 18:15
Maricopa 16:11
maternity 8:2
matter 50:14
Mayor 34:2 48:22
 59:15
ma'am 4:10,24
 23:14 24:18
 28:17 40:22
 42:1,2 50:1
mean 28:6 34:1
 51:14
measure 45:9
media 50:8,13,22
 51:11
mediation 8:6
 9:1,2,4
medical 13:23
meet 51:1
meeting 1:7 3:6
 12:16,20 38:9

41:10 57:20
meetings 39:4
member 27:15
members 28:7
men 24:10
mental 13:23
mentor 28:8
merit 25:8 26:3
met 21:13
Michael 42:5
Michigan 1:3,14
 3:1 38:11 61:3
Mike 42:22
million 23:4,6
millions 22:25
mind 40:22
minutes 5:14
 38:14
mistake 24:13
mistakes 24:12
misuse 45:15
model 52:25
mom 8:1
moment 35:16
money 51:5
monitor 22:6
monitoring 17:11
 22:4 23:5,6,11
Monitors 17:12
Monitor's 16:3
 18:12
month 20:5 27:9
monthly 6:5 7:14
months 20:2,7
 57:10
Moore 2:10 4:7,8
 18:24 19:5,14
 25:20,22 56:18
 56:23 57:5
motion 5:1,14
move 10:16 16:14
 24:21 25:19
 26:8,20 27:7
 27:17 29:23
 30:2,10,20
 33:4,16,22
 34:15,18 35:1
 36:7 38:5,6
 48:8 51:5
 55:14 59:16
 60:7
moved 5:3,4,7,16

5:18 26:10,12
 26:22,24 29:2
 30:1,4 59:15
 60:8,9
movement 23:24
moving 19:22
 40:11 59:7
multiply 41:14
multitude 43:16

N

nail 22:19
name 10:21 38:14
 39:17 40:2
 42:5
narcotics 55:23
 55:25,25 56:1
 56:4,6,10
 57:12,13,13
necessarily
 45:21
necessary 32:9
need 28:25 29:13
 30:6,16 31:1
 31:16 33:22
 34:3,5,15,18
 35:8 37:3,5
 39:14 41:12
 43:8 49:3
needed 19:1,12
 28:9
needs 48:20
neighborhoods
 53:10
never 13:7 21:13
 28:11 29:24
new 12:17 24:23
 27:10 32:22
 35:19 36:11
 37:14,20 56:6
 57:3 60:5
news 22:20 56:15
 56:17
newspaper 51:10
night 56:16
nine 13:7 32:24
nominate 28:18
 28:22 36:17
nominated 29:19
 30:17 37:8
nomination 29:14
 29:17,18

nominations
 27:18 28:16
 30:18,18,19,20
 30:21 31:3,4,5
 31:8,10 36:8
 36:15,20,21,22
Notary 61:19
note 50:7 51:14
 57:20

number 39:19
 54:1,6,7 57:24
 58:5

numbers 7:22

O

oath 61:9
observe 22:17
obviously 8:19
occur 18:4
occurred 13:18
 18:19 45:15,18
 45:18
OCI 10:1,13 28:7
OCI's 7:14
offensive 45:16
offer 30:14 53:6
 58:12
offering 28:8
office 4:12,20
 6:11 7:14
 12:22 14:12
 15:13 38:24,25
 43:18 58:4
officer 21:11,23
 22:4,5 40:11
 40:17 42:15
 43:13,16,18,20
 44:4,5 50:19
officers 5:25
 6:15 19:11
 20:20 21:7,9
 22:18 23:20
 38:19 42:11,18
 43:4 51:15
 56:2,3 57:1,2
oh 28:25 31:10
 31:14 39:13
 46:6 55:15
okay 5:25 14:8
 24:21 25:15,16
 28:17,20 29:18
 31:1,3,11,14

32:7 33:3
 36:10,15 37:8
 38:1,6 39:8
 40:12 41:25
 44:5 46:16,20
 49:17 53:20
 54:1,9,14,17
 55:21 57:17
 60:7

old 27:7,8 52:21
 53:17

once 20:5,16
 59:25

ones 43:5

open 6:12 10:3
 28:16

operated 27:24

operations 57:24

operators 41:4

opinion 36:3
 52:3

opportunity
 57:23

opposed 5:12,23
 26:17 27:4
 45:16

options 19:10

Oral 38:12

orange 55:6

order 16:9 27:25
 34:14 46:10

47:15,17 48:2
 48:13 53:3

Oregon 8:25

organization

24:9

Orr 42:23 48:5

outside 51:20

outstanding 25:6

oversight 15:17
 16:4

P

Page 1:11

paid 23:5 57:25

Pamela 4:19 7:16

Pannel 39:20,22
 54:17,18,23

55:1,10

paper 8:22 20:14

paragraph 17:25

paragraphs 13:4

13:6,7,8 18:16
23:9
parameters 50:24
particular 22:5
34:16 48:19
57:15 59:8
particularly
57:24
patient 29:22
patrol 38:20
40:25
pattern 11:6
pay 51:6
paycheck 51:3
paying 23:3
people 9:3 15:15
16:16,21 19:19
33:25 34:2,5
34:11 45:13
46:11 48:4,6
53:1,23,23
56:5 57:12
59:17,20
pepper 19:2,5
percent 6:7,10
6:14,17,18,18
6:21,21,22,22
7:1,2,2,3,5,6
7:6,7 18:15,17
18:19 50:19
51:11
performance 18:9
period 18:13
permanent 26:19
27:6
person 15:3
22:15 40:22
41:9 50:12
personal 46:5
52:3
personally 51:15
57:21 58:10
personnel 57:11
perspective
44:10
pertaining 50:22
pick 53:8
picking 46:12
piece 21:5
piggyback 9:22
pilot 53:3
place 9:23 12:17

12:17 13:2,9
13:16,21 14:9
14:14 15:19
16:21 19:12
24:13 33:6
34:5 46:25
61:9
places 14:23
38:22
Plan 17:17
planning 8:3
please 3:10
38:15 41:20
55:12
point 8:8 23:6
34:13 37:9
45:20 46:2
47:5,13 48:7
49:1,9,10,10
49:13,14 58:12
points 46:15
police 1:5 2:14
3:6 11:4 17:6
21:6,9,11
23:19 24:5
25:3,4,23,24
28:5 31:19
32:1 36:11
37:14,21 38:19
39:2,15 41:2
41:12 43:4
45:2,4 48:17
49:21 50:6,18
51:15
policies 14:14
14:14,15,16,18
18:6
policing 24:9
policy 18:5
20:21 52:4,5
poll 34:12
population 51:9
51:12
posed 8:5
position 47:18
possible 8:6
51:18
post 51:16 52:2
posted 50:16
postings 50:15
postponed 32:13
practice 11:6

13:19 36:2
practices 14:20
14:24
pray 28:9
prayer 28:8
precedent 46:22
precinct 6:17,17
20:19
precincts 11:16
premiere 16:17
prepare 20:3
Present 3:13,16
3:19,22,25 4:3
4:5,8
presentation
10:16 41:8,9
41:13
presented 15:10
presenting 44:14
59:12
pretty 8:16
58:22
previous 23:5
58:1
pride 26:2
prior 12:6 50:5
prisoner 18:8
prisoners 13:25
14:3
prisons 11:15
privacy 44:16
privilege 45:21
pro 59:4
probation 42:20
problem 11:21
22:5 43:2
problems 24:6
procedure 6:21
7:5
proceedings
60:11 61:8,13
process 8:21
12:12 14:9
16:15 32:14
39:3,16
processes 10:5
15:19 24:13
professional
10:2
program 13:15,24
promotions 48:14
properly 13:22

property 6:22
proposal 8:10
9:2 23:8
prosecutor 43:24
Prosecutor's
15:13 43:18
proud 24:10
proven 19:20
provide 44:7,9
44:11
provided 16:4
providing 8:9
provisions 13:13
47:23
pro-community
59:4
pro-police 59:4
prudent 48:22
PR-24 15:2 45:15
public 25:8 26:1
38:9 40:9,13
48:3 56:20
57:4 59:1,12
61:19
pulled 50:20
pursuits 18:11
push 53:4
pushing 52:20
put 13:20 14:9
34:5 42:19
49:20 57:3
putting 8:22
p.m 1:15 3:3
60:11
P.V 40:19 41:11

Q

qualify 52:16
qualitative
45:11
quantitative
45:10
quarter 18:20
question 9:8
18:25 20:9,25
22:22 38:18
40:14 43:9,10
43:11 47:15,19
47:19,24 48:6
56:19
questions 8:13
9:10,20 18:21

18:23 19:15
24:17
quick 55:16
Quinn 4:21
quote 35:24

R

R 2:3,10 3:12
25:12,20,21
26:2,6
raise 32:3
raised 47:14,22
raising 47:14
random 44:2
rate 21:10
rating 21:13
reach 12:8
reached 37:13
read 24:24 25:20
ready 54:21
real 55:5
really 16:18
19:18 20:16
22:20 28:13
33:12 42:13,14
42:18,25 48:14
51:2 54:10
57:14 58:20
reason 33:7 43:3
reasons 15:12
receive 11:16
received 6:4
11:5,12 16:10
17:4
receiving 14:10
recognition 25:5
recognize 26:1
recommendation
30:14
recommendations
18:5 58:2
record 7:17
24:25 37:4,6
38:14
recorder 4:21
recruit 52:13,14
reduced 61:10
reduction 23:4
refer 40:21
53:23,23
reference 19:18
19:22 59:7,12

59:15
Reflecting 9:14
reflective 48:18
refresh 56:4,9
regard 8:6 26:4
regardless 24:2
48:5
regards 25:9
Reginald 2:6
3:20
REGULAR 1:7
regulate 21:8
relate 17:15
relationship
9:25
relative 47:16
released 12:4
remain 17:18
remarkable 28:14
remarks 33:1
34:15
remember 9:14
21:12
remove 13:25
removed 14:4
reorganization
57:15
replace 57:2
replaced 10:1
report 5:25 6:1
6:3 7:8,14 8:9
8:12,15 10:16
18:12,14 24:20
55:17
reported 61:7
REPORTER 61:1
Reporting 4:23
reports 24:22
38:23 41:12
representative
40:13
representatives
16:12
represents 6:6
6:10
repute 52:4
requests 12:10
required 15:16
22:15,16
requirement 12:8
requirements
12:1,5

research 8:4,10
8:21 9:6 14:21
14:21
researched 50:21
resolution 22:7
24:25 25:5,20
26:8,18,21
27:5
resolve 24:24
resolved 46:3
respect 40:18
respectful 45:1
respond 20:12,16
20:23 21:1,2
22:16 39:12
responds 20:22
response 42:14
45:1 46:9
responsible
10:23
rest 4:15 34:12
result 21:19
resume 49:7
retired 12:19
24:25
review 17:14
reviewed 15:21
reviewing 14:10
revising 14:14
revolutionary
50:14
Rhonda 1:17 4:22
61:17
Ricardo 2:10 4:6
Richard 2:4 3:14
rides 53:7
riding 40:16
right 4:21 7:11
8:21 9:9 16:14
16:19 21:15,16
22:19 24:11
29:23 38:17
46:13 47:3
53:24 54:5
55:12 59:5
rights 10:17,22
11:7 15:8 17:8
risk 18:9
Robert 4:20
role 16:3 52:25
roll 3:9
rollcall 31:20

Romano 49:18,18
Ron 23:19 49:16
Room 38:11
rotating 57:11
roundtrip 52:22
routinely 21:23
runs 22:17

S

Sabree 4:17
safe 49:22 51:18
51:19 59:19
safety 26:1
38:10 39:3
salute 25:11
satisfactory
46:9
saying 31:24
34:3,4,25
40:11 46:4,5,7
49:4 51:17
says 34:4 35:17
scene 20:12,17
scheduling 7:24
scholarships
53:6
Scott 23:19 33:5
44:25 46:1,4
46:15,17,19,20
47:3,5,8,13
48:12,16 49:1
49:5,9,13,17
screening 13:23
scrutiny 19:25
seated 4:18,20
second 5:5,6,17
11:10 26:11,23
28:24 29:1,5,7
29:10,11,14,15
30:4,5,5,24
53:6
seconded 5:19
26:13 29:2
Secretary 2:11
3:8,9,11,14,17
3:20,23 4:1,4
4:6,9,14,16
6:1,3 7:12
30:10,12,24,25
32:4,5 35:15
41:20,24 46:2
46:9 47:7,10

Secretary's 6:3
 7:8
section 27:13
 41:17 47:14,23
 56:1
see 11:5 14:23
 16:13 17:1
 19:23 21:21
 22:3 23:12,23
 32:12,13 34:25
 38:21 39:5
 43:1,1 45:11
 45:17 48:9
 55:9 59:23
seeing 21:20
 31:6 37:7
seen 9:23 57:13
send 16:12 22:7
 22:8
senior 20:20
seniority 56:3
separate 12:9
September 8:2
sergeant 4:21
 20:10,11,13
 21:9,10,13,17
 25:21 26:2,5
 26:21 27:5
sergeants 21:21
serve 27:15
 35:18 36:4
served 46:23,23
 47:2
service 4:23
 6:22 7:7 21:13
 22:9,12 25:6,8
Services 39:15
serving 58:13
set 12:10 23:9
 42:16 43:20
 61:10
Seventeen 7:19
share 58:3
sheet 21:7
Shelby 2:4 3:15
 3:16 9:11
short 20:25
show 24:14 31:18
 32:2 37:11
showing 7:10
shut 56:11
shutting 55:24

sick 55:5
side 7:10
sign 21:14
signed 11:8
Sims 10:18,21,21
 16:25 19:4,7
 19:17 20:1
 22:9,14,21
 23:3 24:2,19
sincere 25:5
sir 9:17 10:8
 30:15 33:10
 43:11 44:22,24
 52:1,7 57:7
sit 16:13 38:23
 42:19
six 17:21 32:5
Smith 54:19
smooth 58:18
social 50:13,22
society 59:19
solo 52:22,22
somebody 30:12
 54:11 55:5
soon 8:9
sorry 28:25
 42:13 43:11
 55:15
space 38:25
span 21:5
speak 44:18
 57:10
SPEAKER 25:14
 29:9 32:15
 35:9 36:24
speaking 20:20
 25:3,24 32:16
 50:4
speaks 33:15
special 45:21
species 33:6
specifies 33:5
spend 51:5
spirit 59:16,23
spray 15:1 19:2
 19:5
SS 61:4
ST 61:5
staff 2:15 4:15
 4:17 11:1 28:4
 28:7
Stair 25:1,12

26:9,18
Stair's 25:6
stand 43:13,16
 43:21
Standing 24:21
stands 5:13,24
started 14:6
state 1:3 38:14
 56:21 61:3
stated 19:1 50:5
 58:5
states 8:24
stations 38:21
statistical
 40:10
statistics 7:18
stay 50:16
stenographically
 61:8
step 59:22
stop 27:18 34:10
stops 18:10
store 55:5
street 1:13 56:2
strictly 21:8
strong 59:18
style 58:8
subjective 43:23
submit 17:16
 20:5
submitted 7:19
 7:21
subparagraphs
 17:25
succeed 35:18
 36:4
success 25:10
sued 10:24
suggestions 39:9
suicidal 13:25
Sunday 53:6
supervision
 20:10,18 61:11
supervisor 20:22
 20:23 21:2
supervisors 21:1
 22:14,16
support 17:3,4
 27:19 28:13
 48:3 58:12
 60:1,4
supported 5:8

26:25 60:10
supposed 18:2
 29:23 46:23
sure 8:19,20
 13:21,24 14:4
 14:5,7 15:9,17
 15:20 16:5
 17:5 18:1 20:2
 21:12 46:7
 48:2 50:19
 56:7 58:23
sustainability
 12:8
sustained 7:1,2
sworn 33:20
system 18:10
 21:22

T

tag 57:23
take 13:2 15:6
 30:21 34:18
 46:8 51:24
 54:12
taken 1:13 33:2
 49:14
talk 16:13 50:11
talked 15:8 27:9
talking 21:25
 22:1 32:18
 48:24 50:5
taxi 40:14
Taylor 2:2 3:5,7
 4:11,14,25 5:4
 5:7,12,18,23
 7:11 8:6,14
 9:9,19 10:15
 18:22 19:15
 24:16,20 25:17
 26:7,12,17,24
 27:4 28:20,25
 29:4,7,11,15
 29:18 30:2,6
 30:11,15 31:1
 31:10,13,18,23
 32:3,7,16 33:3
 33:10,23 34:20
 34:24 35:5,11
 36:6,10,15,19
 36:25 37:5,9
 37:17,19,23
 38:1,4 39:8,13

39:22 40:5,20
 41:19,23 42:1
 43:7 44:22
 46:1,6,16,18
 47:1,4,9,12
 48:12,24 49:3
 49:6,10,15,25
 51:22 52:8
 53:11,16,20,22
 54:1,4,8,12,16
 54:21,24 55:3
 55:12,21 56:13
 56:17 57:7,17
 60:2,9
teach 56:6
team 9:12,16
 17:9,10,11,20
 17:21 23:3,5,6
technical 16:4
tell 51:3,4,5
telling 30:7
 50:16
ten 21:9 22:13
 22:24 23:25
tens 22:25
term 46:21 47:10
 58:19
terminated 12:6
terms 16:3 20:10
 27:15 35:19
 36:5 45:9,16
 47:2 50:21
 58:20,23 59:14
 59:16
testify 33:8
testimony 42:11
 61:9
thank 3:11 4:11
 4:16,25 7:11
 7:15 9:9,16,17
 10:8,12,13,15
 19:14 22:20,21
 24:15,18,19
 26:5 27:19
 28:3,4,10
 33:10 36:6
 37:10,18,22
 39:25 42:1
 44:21,22,25
 49:23 52:1,7
 57:5,16 58:17
 58:19 59:25

thankful 45:8
thing 8:18 10:4
 14:13 45:19
 51:7 52:20
 53:13 55:16
 59:5
things 8:22
 13:21 14:4
 15:23 17:7
 22:6,12 24:11
 27:21 32:12
 43:17 50:8,21
 50:22 53:5
 56:8 57:1 58:6
 59:2
think 9:2 11:20
 13:9,11 20:16
 21:2 25:17
 29:22 31:16
 33:3,14,14
 34:14 35:2
 36:2 47:24
 48:8,14,20,21
 50:7 51:15
 53:18 55:4
 57:9,9,14,25
 58:7 59:6
thinks 48:5
Third 1:13 38:10
thirdly 43:19
thorough 24:20
 44:6
thought 46:3
 52:23
thousand 51:13
three 8:24 11:23
 30:17 35:25
 42:11,11 54:25
 57:10
Thursday 1:16
 3:2 5:2,15
time 5:1 7:13
 9:1 11:11
 13:11 15:5
 16:16 19:11
 20:22 21:6
 26:7,20 27:17
 27:23,24,25
 28:2,15 29:21
 29:21 33:18
 34:7,16 35:22
 54:15 57:4

61:9
timeline 19:23
timely 9:13
times 20:14
 21:12 30:17
 45:10,17 59:5
tireless 25:8
today 7:18 12:16
 12:23 23:15
 27:9 45:7 55:1
 55:18
today's 51:10
Todd 39:15
told 30:7 60:3
Tom 28:8
Tonya 40:2
touch 53:25 54:2
toughest 50:8
track 21:21
traditions 54:11
traffic 55:19
training 15:25
 16:1 22:10
transcript 4:22
transcription
 61:11,13
transferring
 56:2
transformation
 58:9
transition 12:12
 12:15 20:3,5
 58:18
tremendous 13:10
 17:4
tried 55:19
true 44:15 61:12
truly 49:19
trust 43:5
trusts 43:3
trying 31:24
 34:24 52:13,14
 52:14 54:25
Tuesday 55:4
tunnel 19:24
turn 42:22
turned 14:11
two 11:8 12:9
 13:6,9 18:16
 19:9,10 32:4
 32:17 34:2
 38:14,19 45:8

46:15 47:2
 48:23 50:15,25
two-year 11:19
type 13:17 19:25
 58:24

U

unanimous 37:13
understand 35:20
 46:6 49:4
 50:12,13,20
 51:8
unfounded 7:1
UNIDENTIFIED
 25:14 29:9
 32:15 35:9
 36:24
unit 57:3
units 6:15
unknown 6:15
unquote 35:24
unresolved 41:7
updated 14:16
 18:6
use 11:10 12:7
 13:4 18:7,18
 20:21 53:4
 58:18
usually 11:14
 14:11
utilize 15:1
 19:11,13
utilized 17:12
U.S 12:22

V

vacation 7:23
valid 46:2
vehicle 18:11
 41:2,16
verbal 22:9,11
versus 22:2
viable 8:10,20
 8:23
Vice 2:3 3:13
 5:16 26:10
 27:11 28:5
 29:12 30:9
 33:16 35:14,23
 36:8,8,16,18
 37:12,14,20
 57:19 58:13,19

violate 52:5
violating 11:7
 15:8
violation 20:24
 50:25
violator 56:1
volunteered
 38:25 39:1
 59:22
vote 29:23 30:6
 30:22,23 31:7
 31:12,14,15,17
 31:20 32:9
 33:2,6 36:24
 36:25 37:2,3,5
voted 48:4,6
votes 30:24 32:5
 37:8
voting 32:14

W

wait 34:3,5,11
waiting 18:13
wake 45:6
walk 31:2 39:16
Walker 38:16,16
 39:17,24
want 11:25 16:20
 16:21,21 17:1
 18:1 19:16,21
 23:14,24 27:18
 28:3,11 32:11
 43:7 45:6,11
 46:18 48:1
 49:13 50:3
 51:13 53:24
 56:4,7,9 57:8
 57:21 58:16,18
 58:19 59:1,3
 59:17,18,23
wanted 32:12
 47:6 49:1
 54:18 55:22
 58:10
Warfield 47:2,11
Warfield's 46:21
Washington 8:25
wasn't 21:3
 32:12 42:13
watch 57:23
way 16:18 19:17
 24:12 42:21

51:10 56:23,24
Wayne 9:4 51:11
ways 10:9
weapon 14:25
 19:2,6,8,12
 45:17
weapons 16:2
website 50:16
websites 50:14
Wednesday 38:8
weeks 16:13
Welborne 52:8,9
 52:10 53:12,13
 53:18,21,24
 54:3,5,10,14
welcome 3:6 40:1
 51:19 60:2
Wells 40:2,3,7
 40:23 41:21,25
 42:3
Wendell 2:5 3:18
went 20:18 55:5
 56:23
weren't 14:19
 22:13 24:7
white 2:3,16
 3:12,13 4:12
 4:13 5:16 9:21
 10:12 16:24
 20:21 21:17
 22:2,11 24:4
 26:10 28:6,23
 29:3,4,5,8,19
 30:9 32:8 35:5
 35:13,14 39:10
 39:14,18,21
 40:1,15 43:7,9
 43:15,22,25
 44:14 51:23
 52:2 55:16,22
 56:22,25 57:16
 57:18,19
White's 47:10
Willie 2:7,8
 3:23 4:1 28:21
 29:20 30:3
 31:7 36:12
willing 59:22
winner 30:25
 36:9,10
wishes 25:9
witness 11:10

13:5 43:13,16
 43:21
witnessed 15:6
woman 27:22,22
women 21:25
 24:11
wonderful 10:10
word 58:12
work 10:7 35:11
 35:12 38:21
 40:4,4 42:6,7
 49:19 52:12
 53:15,21
working 8:4 9:2
 9:25 12:11
 13:4 20:13
 32:12 34:1
 56:25 58:22
 59:8,16
works 52:17
 59:20
worth 34:18
wouldn't 45:9
 57:13
write 38:22
 40:12,24
writing 58:3
written 11:20
wrong 31:24
wrote 47:16
W-e-l-b-o-r-n-e
 52:10

Y

yea 30:23
Yeah 30:2 31:14
 31:23
year 17:23 18:15
 23:1,7 27:19
 27:20,21 28:13
 28:14 32:24
 33:21 47:15
 58:1,7
years 9:3 12:9
 12:19 13:6,9
 18:17 22:13,24
 23:25 25:6
 52:21 56:3
 58:1
year-to-date 6:8
 6:9
yesterday 16:10

young 20:19 42:7
 52:13,21 53:5
 53:23
y'all 40:4

1

1 1:11 2:4 6:7
1st 32:24 33:20
 36:13
10 6:22 12:18
10:00 53:7
11 7:2,3 12:19
 27:25 46:10
 47:16,17 48:13
110 13:3,8
12 5:15 20:2,7,8
13 7:6
130 6:6
1301 1:13 38:10
131 6:6,14,19
140 6:23 7:4
15th 18:20 57:3
16 7:2 52:21
17 52:15 53:18
 53:19
18 12:11 20:2,7
 56:3
18th 11:8,24
195 17:24
1974 59:21
1987 14:18
1996 14:17

2

2 2:5 23:6
2nd 38:8 41:10
2.5 51:11
2:00 53:7
2000 11:3
2003 11:8 12:18
2013 6:6,9 11:23
 11:24 12:2
2014 1:16 3:2
 5:15 6:4,8,11
 6:16,19,24
 12:11 41:10
 49:22
204-2477 54:3,4
23 6:10
24 7:6
25 25:6
26 1:16 3:2 6:21

26th 5:2
264 17:23
269 6:20
276 6:12
283 7:19
287 6:25

3

3 2:6
3-11-2015 61:20
3:00 1:15 38:9
3:03 3:3
30th 12:2 18:13
30-minute 14:6
313 54:3
33 6:21
36 7:5
3612 1:17 61:18
37 6:14

4

4 2:7
4:07 60:11
400 9:15
475 6:9
48 15:10
49 7:1

5

5 2:8
500 9:15
584 6:13
586 6:9, 13

6

6 2:9
61 1:11
65 12:5

7

7 2:10 6:18, 22
53:18
7-Eleven 38:21
7-802 27:13
47:14
70s 16:17
72 15:15
788-some-odd
51:13

8

8 6:17, 18 7:7

8th 6:17 15:7
86 18:15
89 13:6, 9 18:16
18:17, 19 23:9

9

9 52:15 53:18, 19
9th 6:17 15:7
90 7:21
95 50:19